Parade Technologies, Ltd.

(the "Company")

2016 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of MEMBERS MEETING MINUTES

(Translation)

Time: June 21, 2016, 9:00 a.m., Taipei Local Time

Place: 7F., No.236, Sec. 4, Xinyi Rd., Xinyi Dist., Taipei City 110, Taiwan

Present: Members in person or by proxy, representing 56,866,156 shares entitled to vote

for or against each of the resolutions as set out below, accounted for 74.91% of

the total 75,911,677 issued shares

Chairman: Ji Zhao, Chairman of the Board of Directors

Directors: Ji Zhao, Chairman of the Board of Directors

Ming Qu, Vice Chairman

Jen-Lin (Norman) Shen, Independent Director

Attendees: Hua-Ling Liang, CPA, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan

Ying-Yi Lee, Attorney, Chen & Lin Attorneys-at-Law

Judy Wang, Senior Vice President of Finance, Parade Technologies, Inc.

Recorder: Yo-Ming Chang

The necessary quorum of members was present in person or by proxy and the Chairman declared the meeting duly constituted and the Company may proceed to business.

Commencement (Omitted)

Chairman Remarks (Omitted)

Discussions:

1. To approve the amendment of the Company's Amended and Restated Articles of Association (Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanatory Notes:

(1) In response to the recent amendment to the Company Act of the Republic of China, notice from the Authorities, certain changes to the Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association are required or advised. The comparison table of the amended articles is attached hereto as Attachment I.

- (2) For the administrative efficiency and housekeeping purpose, it is proposed to adopt a new set of Memorandum and Articles incorporating the above proposed changes and combining the existing Sixth-D memorandum of association and Articles into one document to be referred to as the "Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles".
- (3) A copy of the Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles is attached hereto as Attachment II.
- (4) Please approve the above-mentioned proposal.

<u>Resolution</u>: 56,866,156 shares were represented at the time of voting; 46,757,371 voted in favor for the proposal, representing 82.22% of the total votes held by the members present in the meeting, 0 voted against the proposal, 0 voted invalid the proposal, and 10,108,785 voted abstained/no voted the proposal. This proposal as proposed by the board of directors was duly passed as special resolution of the Company.

Report Items

- 1. To report the 2015 business report (See Attachment III)
- 2. To report the 2015 review report by the Audit Committee (See Attachment IV)
- 3. To report the implementation of the 2015-2 Share Repurchase and Incentive Plan.

Explanatory Notes:

(1) The results of the 2015-2 Share Repurchase Plan is as below:

Series	the second repurchase in year 2015
Board resolution date	9/2/2015 (Taiwan Time)
Purpose of repurchase	Transferring to the employees
The set repurchase period	Between 9/3/2015 and
	11/2/2015
	Between 9/24/2015 and
The actual repurchase period	11/2/2015
The set repurchase price range (per share)	NT\$ 172.00 to NT\$ 365.50
The actual repurchase price range (per share)	NT\$ 226.50 to NT\$ 250.50
Average repurchase price per share	NT\$ 242.13
The set maximum repurchase shares	1,000,000 common stocks
Accumulated number of shares already repurchased	200,000 common stocks

Series	the second repurchase in year 2015
Value spent on the repurchase	NT\$ 48,425,560 (Note)
Number of shares transferred and cancelled	0
Accumulated number of shares already repurchased	200,000 common stocks
Accumulated percentage of repurchased shares to total number of shares issued (%)	0.26%
Reason for non-completion of the share repurchase at expiry of the repurchase period	Considering the market mechanism and does not affect the stock price, the Company has depend on the stock price and trading situation to proceed the partial shares buyback. Hence does not buyback whole amount planned shares.

Note: Included service charge NTD20,560.

- (2) Share Repurchase and Employee Incentive Plan is attached hereto as Attachment XIII.
- 4. To report the allocation of 2015 employees' cash bonuses and the Directors' remuneration.

Explanatory Notes:

- (1) In the meeting on January 28, 2016 (Taiwan Time), the Board has resolved to propose to the coming annual shareholders' meeting for approval the amendments to the Company's Articles of Association, which provides that the Company shall appropriate no less than 5% of the annual profits before tax as employees' bonuses and a maximum of 2% additional Directors' remuneration and that such annual profits before tax shall be without giving effect of the deduction and distribution of such employee bonus and the additional Directors' remuneration.
- (2) Considering the "Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles" and the Company's 2015 annual profits before tax, the Compensation Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors the approval of distribution and payment of NT\$69,560,692 in cash as the employees' bonuses and NT\$21,403,289 in cash as Directors' remuneration, respectively, equivalent to US\$2,107,900 and US\$648,585, by adopting foreign exchange rate of US\$1=NT\$33.00.

Proposals

1. To ratify the 2015 Business Report (Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanatory Notes:

- (1) The 2015 business report is attached hereto as Attachment III.
- (2) Please ratify the above-mentioned Business Report.

<u>Resolution</u>: 56,866,156 shares were represented at the time of voting; 49,734,371 voted in favor for the proposal, representing 87.46% of the total votes held by the members present in the meeting, 0 voted against the proposal, 0 voted invalid the proposal, and 7,131,785 voted abstained/no voted the proposal. This proposal as proposed by the board of directors was duly passed as ordinary resolution of the Company.

2. To adopt the Company's 2015 audited consolidated financial reports (Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanatory Notes:

- (1) The Company's 2015 consolidated financial statements, including Consolidated Balance Sheets, Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity, and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, have been approved by the Board of Directors, audited by independent auditors, Ms. Chou Hsiao-Tzu and Mr. Lai Chung-Hsi, of PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan and reviewed by the Audit Committee, evidenced by the review report issued by the Audit Committee.
- (2) The 2015 independent accountants' audit report and above-mentioned consolidated financial statements are attached hereto as Attachment V.
- (3) Please ratify the above-mentioned 2015 audited consolidated financial statements.

<u>Resolution</u>: 56,866,156 shares were represented at the time of voting; 49,734,371 voted in favor for the proposal, representing 87.46% of the total votes held by the members present in the meeting, 0 voted against the proposal, 0 voted invalid the proposal, and 7,131,785 voted abstained/no voted the proposal. This proposal as proposed by the board of directors was duly passed as ordinary resolution of the Company.

3. To approve the 2015 profit distribution plan (Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanatory Notes:

(1) The Company's 2015 profits distribution table has been approved by the Board of Directors. The table has been reviewed and evidenced by the report issued

by the Audit Committee.

- (2) The proposed profits distribution table/plan is to distribute 2015 Retained Earnings Available for Distribution, inclusive of distribution of the profits to the shareholders at the total amount of NT\$381,896,776, equivalent to cash dividend per share of NT\$5.02, equivalent to US\$0.1521, by adopting foreign exchange rate of US\$1=NT\$33.00.
- (3) In the event the Company subsequently repurchase and retire the treasury stocks or issue new shares and thus change the number of total issued and outstanding shares of the Company, it is proposed to authorize the Board of Directors to adjust the ultimate cash dividend per share based on the total amount of profits resolved to be distributed in the 2016 Annual General Meeting of Members and the number of total issued and outstanding shares on the record date for distribution and proceed relevant matters.
- (4) It is proposed to authorize the Board of the Directors to determine the record date of the cash dividends after this profit proposal is approved by this 2016 Annual General Meeting of Members.
- (5) The 2015 Profit Distribution Table is attached hereto as Attachment VI.
- (6) Please approve the above-mentioned 2015 Profit Distribution Proposal.

<u>Resolution</u>: 56,866,156 shares were represented at the time of voting; 49,714,371 voted in favor for the proposal, representing 87.42% of the total votes held by the members present in the meeting, 0 voted against the proposal, 0 voted invalid the proposal, and 7,151,785 voted abstained/no voted the proposal. This proposal as proposed by the board of directors was duly passed as ordinary resolution of the Company.

Discussions

2. To approve 2016 Employee Restricted Stock Awards Plan (Proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanatory Notes:

(1) The Company has established this 2016 Employee Restricted Stock Awards Plan to attract and retain professional personnel needed by the Company, to motivate employees and enhance their centripetal force so as to jointly create the Company's and shareholders' interests. Within one year from the date of the shareholders resolution, the Company may, depending on its actual need, register with the competent authority single tranche or multiple tranche of the restricted shares for the employees. For the number of shares effectively registered, the Company may issue the shares all at once or by tranches. The

Chairman is authorized to determine the actual issuance date.

- (2) The material terms of 2016 Employee Restricted Stock Awards Plan (the "2016 RSA Plan") are as below:
 - I. Expected total number of the Restricted Stock Awards ("RSA") issuance: 1,150,000 shares, with par value NT\$ 10 per share.

II. The terms and conditions of issuance

- i. Issue price: Each RSA will be issued without consideration.
- ii. Vesting conditions: The RSAs will be vested at the equal rate of 25% per year over four (4) years from (x) the date the RSAs are granted, in the case of non-management employee, or (y) from May 1, 2016, in the case of management employee; each 25% will be vested on the anniversary of (x) the date the RSAs are granted to the grantee employee, in the case of non-management employee, or (y) May 1, 2016 (i.e. April 30 of each year of 2017 to 2020), in the case of management employee; provide that such employee continuously serves the Company to each corresponding anniversary.

iii. Restrictions before RSA is vested:

- ①. The grantee employee shall not sell, transfer, make gift of, create other rights or encumbrances on the RSAs, or otherwise dispose of the RSAs in any other manner.
- ②. All the proposal rights, motion rights, speech rights, voting rights and any other shareholder rights shall be exercised by the trustee or the custodian (as applicable).
- ③. The restrictions (including but not limited to transfer restrictions and vesting conditions) applicable to any and all unvested RSAs (and any share derived from such RSAs for whatever reason, including share dividend, retained earning capitalization, recapitalization, reserve capitalization and any cash distributed based on such RSAs for whatever reason, including cash dividend and distribution of capital reserve in the form of cash) shall equally apply to any share derived, directly or indirectly, from and cash distributed based on such unvested RSAs for whatever reason, including share dividend, retained earning capitalization, recapitalization, reserve capitalization, cash dividend and distribution of capital reserve in the form of cash, and any interests (collectively, the "Restricted Share and Cash Distribution"). For the avoidance of doubt, for the purpose of this Plan, the unvested RSAs shall include all the corresponding Restricted Share and Cash Distribution, which are subject to the same restrictions and thus unvested.

- ④. In the case that the grantee employee is an ROC citizen, such employee shall, immediately after the Company issues the RSAs to such employee, trust such RSAs to the trustee designated by the Company in accordance with the Company's instruction and, unless otherwise provided hereunder, shall be continuously trusted till the full satisfaction of the vesting conditions. Any and all the Restricted Share and Cash Distribution derived from the unvested RSAs shall also be put in the trust. In the case that the grantee employee is non-ROC citizen, such employee shall put the RSA with a custodian bank for custody.
- ⑤. In the event the employee's employment is terminated or inheritance occurs, etc., all the rights attached to the unvested RSAs will be forfeited on the date when the termination of employment or inheritance takes effect, and the Company may redeem such unvested RSAs at no consideration, and then shall cancel such RSAs.
- ©. Other conditions of the plan please refer to Attachment VII.
- III. Qualifications and conditions for employees and the numbers of shares distributable or subscribable: The eligible employees are limited to the employees of the Company or of the subsidiary wholly owned by the Company who serve as the full-time employees before the RSA are granted. The Chairman shall propose and submit the list of grantee employees and the number of RSAs to be granted to the board of directors of the Company for the approval, in the case of granting the RSA to an employee who serves as directors and/or officers, to the compensation committee of the Company for review and recommendation and then to the board of directors of the Company for final approval. The actual employees and the number of RSA to be granted will be decided according to relevant laws and regulations and within the limitation of amount thereof, considering seniority, job level, work performance, overall contribution, special achievement, and other factors necessary for management, etc., and considering the Company's operational needs and development strategy.
- IV. The reasons why it is necessary to issue the new RSAs: To attract and retain professional personnel needed by the Company, to motivate employees and enhance their centripetal force so as to jointly create the Company's and shareholders' interests.
- V. The expected amount of expenses and the dilution effect on the Company's earnings per share and any other impact on shareholder's equity: (1) NT\$353,050,000 over four years. (2) The dilution effect on the Company's earnings per share is approximately NT\$0.237. The total numbers to be issued under this plan is approximately 1.51% of the

Company's total issued and outstanding shares (76,081,212 shares as of January 31, 2016).

- (3) After being approved by the shareholders' resolution, if any amendment is necessary due to any change of laws or regulations, any demand by the competent authority or any requirement of the circumstance, it is proposed to authorize the Chairman or the person designated by the Chairman to make necessary amendment and submit to the board of directors for approval by a majority of the Directors at a meeting attended by two-thirds or more of the total number of the Directors before the issuance of RSA hereunder.
- (4) Please discuss and approve the above proposal.

<u>Resolution</u>: 56,866,156 shares were represented at the time of voting; 41,695,563 voted in favor for the proposal, representing 73.32% of the total votes held by the members present in the meeting, 5,061,808 voted against the proposal, 0 voted invalid the proposal, and 10,108,785 voted abstained/no voted the proposal. This proposal as proposed by the board of directors was duly passed as supermajority resolution of the Company.

Election Items

To re-elect the Directors (Independent Directors inclusive) of the Company's Board of Directors

Explanatory Notes:

- (1) The term of office of the incumbent Directors (Independent Directors inclusive) will expire on October 27, 2016. The Board of Directors proposes to re-elect the successive Directors, including 3 Independent Directors, in the Company's 2016 Annual General Meeting. The successive 9 Directors will serve a three (3) years term starting from October 28, 2016 to October 27, 2019. The term of the incumbent Directors shall expire immediately before the successive Directors assume the position.
- (2) According to Article 102 of the Company Articles, the candidate nomination mechanism shall be used for the election of Independent Directors and the shareholders shall elect the Independent Directors among the candidates nominated in the list of the candidates. The list of the independent Directors candidates, including the candidate's qualification and conditions, is attached hereto as Attachment IX.
- (3) Rules for Election of Directors is attached hereto as Appendix III.
- (4) Please re-elect the Directors.

<u>Resolution</u>: List of Directors (Independent Directors inclusive) re-elected and votes received by each Director (Independent Directors inclusive) are as follows:

Title	Director's name	Number of Votes Voted FOR
Director	Ji Zhao	46,636,729
Director	Ming Qu	41,990,729
Director	Hao Chen	40,979,729
Director	Jackie Yang	39,977,225
Director	Darren Huang	38,689,225
Director	Cyrus Ying-Chun Tsui	37,870,225
Independent Director	Jen-Lin (Norman) Shen	33,692,113
Independent Director	Dennis Lynn Segers	33,684,763
Independent Director	Charlie Xiaoli Huang	33,677,413

Questions and Motions

There is no ad hoc motion after consultation	with all	present	share holders.	The C	Chairman
declares that the meeting is adjourned.					

Ji Zhao
Chairman
Yo-Ming Chang

Recorder

Comparison Table of Amendments to

The Amended and Restated Articles of Association

Proposed Amendments	Current Provisions	Reasons of Amendment
75. The remuneration to be paid to the Directors is authorized to be decided by the Board with reference to the standard generally adopted by other enterprises in the same industry (the "Base Director Remuneration"). The Directors shall also be entitled to be paid their traveling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by them in going to, attending and returning from meetings of the Board, any committee appointed by the Board, or general meetings of the Company, or otherwise in connection with the business of the Company or their duties as Directors generally, or to receive a fixed allowance in respect thereof pursuant to a service agreement or contract with the Company, or a combination partly of one such method and partly the other.	75. The remuneration to be paid to the Directors is authorized to be decided by the Board with reference to the standard generally adopted by other enterprises in the same industry (the "Base Director Remuneration"). The Directors shall also be entitled to be paid their traveling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by them in going to, attending and returning from meetings of the Board, any committee appointed by the Board, or general meetings of the Company, or otherwise in connection with the business of the Company or their duties as Directors generally, or to receive a fixed allowance in respect thereof pursuant to a service agreement or contract with the Company, or a combination partly of one such method and partly the other. Subject to the provision of the Statute, to the extent that the Company is eligible	Amendment made in response to the latest amendment of the ROC Company Act.

Proposed Amendments	Current Provisions	Reasons of Amendment
	Amended and Restated Articles of Association	
	under Applicable Laws to declare or pay	
	dividends on the share capital of the	
	Company, the Company may further	
	resolve by Ordinary Resolution on that	
	additional remuneration be paid to any	
	Director and such remuneration be paid	
	out of the profits of the Company in	
	accordance with these Articles and the	
	Applicable Public Company Rules.	
113. Unless otherwise provided in the	113. Subject to the Statute and this Article and	Amendment made in response to the latest
Applicable Public Company Rules, where	except as otherwise provided by the rights	amendment of the ROC Company Act.
the Company makes profits before tax for	attached to any Shares, the Company may	
the annual financial year, the Company	declare dividends following the Board's	
shall appropriate (i) no less than [5%] of	recommendation in a distribution plan	
such annual profits before tax as	approved by the Board, with the sanction	
employee bonus (the "Employee	of Ordinary Resolution in the case of	
Bonus"), which shall be distributed in	Article 75 or Supermajority Resolution in	
accordance with the incentive programme	the case of Article 24(e)(i), resolve to pay	
approved pursuant to Article 9 and may	Dividends and other distributions on	
be distributed to employees of the	Shares in issue and authorise payment of	
Company and/or the employees of its	the Dividends or other distributions out of	
Subsidiaries and (ii) a maximum of 2%	the funds of the Company lawfully	
additional Directors' remunerations.	available therefor. The Board shall	
Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph,	provide the distribution plan according to	
if the Company has accumulated losses of	the following requirements: If there are	

Proposed Amendments	Current Provisions	Reasons of Amendment	
Amended and Restated Articles of Association			
the previous years, the Company shall set	profits after the final settlement of account		
aside the amount of such accumulated	of a year (the "Annual Profits"), the		
losses prior to the allocation of the	Company (i) after its losses have been		
Employee Bonus and the above additional	offset and at the time of allocating surplus		
Directors' remunerations. Subject	profits, may first set aside 10% of the		
always to the laws of Cayman Islands, the	Annual Profits as statutory reserve until		
Employee Bonus may be distributed in	the statutory reserve amounts to the		
the form of cash and/or shares, upon	authorized capital, (ii) may appropriate a		
resolution by a majority votes at a	portion of the Annual Profits as special		
meeting of the Board of Directors	reserve required by Applicable Public		
attended by two-thirds (2/3) or more of	Company Rules or government		
the Directors. For the avoidance of	authorities, and (iii) of the remaining of		
doubt, for the purpose of calculation of	the Annual Profits, may appropriate 2% as		
the above Employee Bonus and the	bonuses to the Directors and additional		
additional Directors' remunerations, such	not less than 5% of the remaining profits		
"annual profits before tax" shall be	as employee bonus (the "Employee		
without giving effect of the deduction and	Bonus"), which shall be distributed in		
distribution of such Employee Bonus and	accordance with the incentive programme		
the additional Directors' remunerations.	approved pursuant to Article 9. The		
The resolutions of Board of Directors	Board shall specify the percentages of the		
regarding the distribution of the	bonuses payable to the employees in the		
Employee Bonus in the preceding	distribution plan which may subsequently		
sentence shall be reported to the Members	be subject to the amendment by the		
at the general meeting after such Board	Members by way of the aforementioned		
resolutions are passed. Subject to the	Supermajority Resolution. Thereafter,		

Proposed Amendments	Current Provisions	Reasons of Amendment		
Amended and Restated Articles of Association				
Statute and this Article and except as otherwise provided by the rights attached to any Shares, the Company may declare dividends following the Board's recommendation in a distribution plan approved by the Board, with the sanction of Supermajority Resolution in the case of Article 24(e)(i), resolve to pay Dividends and other distributions on Shares in issue and authorise payment of the Dividends or other distributions out of the funds of the Company lawfully available therefor. The Board shall provide the distribution plan according to the following requirements: If there are profits after the final settlement of account of a year (the "Annual Profits"), the Company (i) after its losses have been offset and at the time of allocating surplus profits, may first set aside 10% of the Annual Profits as statutory reserve until the statutory reserve amounts to the authorized capital, and (ii) may appropriate a portion of the Annual Profits as special reserve required by	having considered the financial, business and operational factors, the Board may propose and specify no less than 10% of any remaining of Annual Profits after the above (i) to (ii) plus, at the Board's sole discretion, a certain percent of accumulated retained earnings to be distributed as dividends by cash or by applying such sum in paying up in full unissued Shares for allotment and distribution credited as fully paid-up pro rata to the Members or any combination of both, or bonuses according to the Statute and Applicable Public Company Rules, among them, cash dividend shall not less than 10% of the total Dividend declared.			

Proposed Amendments	Current Provisions	Reasons of Amendment	
Amended and Restated Articles of Association			
Applicable Public Company Rules or			
government authorities. Thereafter,			
having considered the financial, business			
and operational factors, the Board may			
propose and specify no less than 10% of			
any remaining of Annual Profits after the			
above (i) to (ii) plus, at the Board's sole			
discretion, a certain percent of			
accumulated retained earnings to be			
distributed as dividends by cash or by			
applying such sum in paying up in full			
unissued Shares for allotment and			
distribution credited as fully paid-up pro			
rata to the Members or any combination			
of both, or bonuses according to the			
Statute and Applicable Public Company			
Rules, among them, cash dividend shall			
not less than 10% of the total Dividend			
declared.			

THE COMPANIES LAW (2013 REVISION)

OF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

AMENDED AND RESTATED MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF

PARADE TECHNOLOGIES, LTD.

(adopted by Special Resolution passed on June 21, 2016)

- 1. The name of the Company is **Parade Technologies, Ltd**.
- 2. The Registered Office of the Company shall be at the offices of Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman Islands, or at such other place as the Directors may from time to time decide.
- 3. The objects for which the Company is established are unrestricted and the Company shall have the full power and authority to carry out any object not prohibited by the Companies Law (2013 Revision) or as the same may be revised from time to time, or any other law of the Cayman Islands.
- 4. The liability of each Member is limited to the amount from time to time unpaid on such Member's shares.
- 5. The share capital of the Company is New Taiwan Dollars 1,500,000,000 divided into 150,000,000 Ordinary Shares of a par value of New Taiwan Dollar 10.
- 6. The Company shall have the power to register by way of continuation as a body corporate limited by shares under the laws of any jurisdiction outside the Cayman Islands and to be deregistered in the Cayman Islands.
- 7. Capitalised terms that are not defined in this Memorandum of Association bear the same meaning as those given in the Articles of Association of the Company.

THE COMPANIES LAW (2013 REVISION) OF THE CAYMAN ISLANDS COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

AMENDED AND RESTATED ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF PARADE TECHNOLOGIES, LTD.

(adopted by Special Resolution passed on June 21, 2016)

INTERPRETATION

- 1. In these Articles, Table A in the Schedule to the Statute does not apply and, unless there be something in the subject or context inconsistent therewith:
- "Applicable Laws" means the Applicable Public Company Rules, the Statute or such other rules or legislation applicable to the Company.
- "Applicable Public Company Rules" mean the ROC laws, rules and regulations (including, without limitation, the Company Law, the Securities and Exchange Law, and rules and regulations promulgated by the FSC, the GTSM, or the TSE, as amended from time to time) affecting public reporting companies or companies listed on any ROC stock exchange or securities market that from time to time are required by the relevant regulator as applicable to the Company.
- "Articles" means these Articles as originally framed or as from time to time altered by Special Resolution.
- "Audit Committee" means the audit committee under the Board, which shall comprise solely of Independent Directors of the Company.
 - "Base Director Remuneration" has the meaning given in Article 75.
- "Board of Directors" or "Board" means the board of directors of the Company.
- "Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which banks are open for business in California, United States, and the Republic of China.
- "Capital Reserve" means the premium in excess of par value paid on the issuance of any Shares and income from endowments received by the Company.
- "Cayman Merger" means the merger or consolidation as defined in the Statute.
- "Chairman" means the Director elected amongst all the Directors as the chairman of the Board.
 - "Company" means the above-named Parade Technologies, Ltd.

"Cumulative Voting" means the voting mechanism for election of Directors under which the number of votes exercisable in respect of one share shall be the same as the number of Directors to be elected, and the total number of votes per share may be consolidated for election of one candidate or may be split for election of two or more candidates. A candidate to whom the ballots cast represent a prevailing number of votes shall be deemed elected.

"Directors" mean the directors for the time being of the Company and shall include any and all Independent Directors.

"Dividend" means any dividend (whether interim or final) resolved to be paid on Shares pursuant to these Articles and includes bonus.

"Electronic Record" has the same meaning as in the Electronic Transactions Law.

"Electronic Transactions Law" means the Electronic Transactions Law (2003 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.

"Excluded Issuance" has the meaning given in Article 6.

"FSC" means the Financial Supervisory Commission in the ROC.

"GTSM" means the GreTai Securities Market in the ROC.

"Independent Directors" mean the Directors who are elected as "Independent Directors" for the purpose of the Applicable Public Company Rules.

"Market Observation Post System" or "MOPS" means the public company reporting system maintained by the TSE.

"Member" shall bear the meaning ascribed to in the Statute.

"Memorandum" means the memorandum of association of the Company.

"NT\$" or "New Taiwan Dollars" means the dollar currency of the Republic of China, i.e. the New Taiwan Dollar.

"Options" shall mean rights, options or warrants to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire shares of the Company.

"Ordinary Resolution" shall mean a resolution passed by a simple majority of the Members as, being entitled to do so, vote in person or, where proxies are allowed, by proxy at a general meeting. In computing the majority when a poll is demanded regard shall be had to the number of votes to which each Member is entitled by these Articles.

"Quorum of the Board Meeting" means, unless otherwise provided in these Articles, the majority of the Directors.

"Register of Members" means the register maintained in accordance with the Statute and includes (except where otherwise stated) any duplicate Register of Members.

"Registered Office" means the registered office for the time being of the Company.

"Restricted Shares" has the meaning given in Article 10-1.

"ROC" means Taiwan, the Republic of China.

"Seal" means the common seal of the Company and includes every duplicate seal.

"Secretary" includes any person appointed to perform the duties of Secretary of the Company.

"Shares" or "shares" shall be construed as a reference to shares of each class of share of the Company from time to time in issue.

"Special Resolution" means a resolution passed by a majority of not less than two-thirds (or such greater number as may be specified in these Articles, if any) of such Members as, being entitled to do so, vote in person or, where proxies are allowed, by proxy at a general meeting of which notice specifying the intention to propose the resolution as a special resolution has been duly given. In computing the majority when a poll is demanded regard shall be had to the number of votes to which each Member is entitled by these Articles.

"Statute" means the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as amended and every statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force.

"Subsidiary" means, with respect to any company, (1) the entity, more than one-half of whose total number of the outstanding voting shares or the total amount of the capital stock are directly or indirectly held by such company; (2) the entity that such company has a direct or indirect control over its personnel, financial or business operation; (3) the entity, one half or more of whose shareholders involved in management or board directors are concurrently acting as the shareholders involved in management or board directors of such company; and (4) the entity, one half or more of whose total number of outstanding voting shares or the total amount of the capital stock are held by the same shareholder(s) of such company.

"Supermajority Resolution" means a resolution passed by a majority vote of the Members at a general meeting attended by Members (either in person or by proxy) who represent two-thirds or more of the total outstanding Shares or, if the total number of Shares represented by the Members present (either in person or by proxy) at the general meeting is less than two-thirds of the total outstanding Shares, but more than one half of the total outstanding Shares, means instead, a resolution passed by the two-thirds or more of votes cast by the Members present (either in person or by proxy) at such general meeting.

"TDCC" means the Taiwan Depository & Clearing Corporation.

"Treasury Shares" means a Share held in the name of the Company as a treasury share in accordance with the Statute.

"TSE" means the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.

"US\$" refers to the dollar currency of the United States of America and references to cents or ϕ or should be construed accordingly.

"Vice Chairman" means the Director elected amongst all the Directors as the vice chairman of the Board.

"Written" and "in writing" include all modes of representing or reproducing words in visible form, including Electronic Record.

Words importing the singular number include the plural number and vice versa.

Words importing the masculine gender include the feminine gender.

Words importing persons include corporations, partnerships, limited liability companies or other business organizations.

References to provisions of any law or regulation shall be construed as references to those provisions as amended, re-enacted or replaced from time to time.

The word "may" shall be construed as permissive and the word "shall" shall be construed as imperative.

Any phrase introduced by the terms "including", "include", "in particular" or any similar expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words preceding those terms.

Headings are inserted for reference only and shall be ignored in construing these Articles.

Section 8 of the Electronic Transactions Law shall not apply.

COMMENCEMENT OF BUSINESS

- 2. The business of the Company may be commenced as soon after incorporation of the Company as the Board shall see fit, notwithstanding that part only of the shares may have been allotted.
- 3. The Board may pay, out of the capital or any other monies of the Company, all expenses incurred in or about the formation and establishment of the Company including the expenses of registration.

ISSUE OF SHARES

4. Subject to the provisions in the Statute, the Company shall issue shares without printing share certificates for the Shares issued. Subject to these Articles, the provisions, if any, in the Memorandum (and to any direction that may be given by the Company in general meeting) and without prejudice to any rights attached to any existing Shares, the Board may allot, issue, grant options over or otherwise dispose of Shares with or without preferred, deferred or other rights or restrictions, whether in regard to Dividend or other distribution, voting, return of capital or otherwise and to such persons, at such times and on such other terms as they think proper, and may also (subject to the Statute and these Articles) vary such rights; provided that no Share shall be issued at a discount except in accordance with the Statute. So long as the Shares have been listed on the GTSM or on the TSE, notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles and subject always to the law of Cayman Islands, the details of the holders of Shares which are traded on the GTSM or on the TSE shall be

recorded by TDCC in accordance with Applicable Public Company Rules, and the Company shall recognize as a Member each person identified as a holder of a Share in the records provided by TDCC to the Company and such records shall form part of the Register of Members.

- 4-1 The Company may issue Shares with rights which are preferential to those of ordinary Shares issued by the Company ("preferred Shares") with the approval of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting attended by two-third or more of the total number of the Directors and with the approval of a Special Resolution. Prior to the issuance of any preferred Shares, these Articles shall be amended to set forth the rights and obligations of the preferred Shares, including but not limited to the following terms, and the same shall apply to any variation of rights of preferred Shares:
- (a) order, fixed amount or fixed ratio of allocation of Dividends and bonus on preferred Shares;
- (b) order, fixed amount or fixed ratio of allocation of residual assets of the Company on a liquidation or other return of capital by the Company;
- (c) order of or restriction on the voting right(s) (including declaring no voting rights whatsoever) of preferred Shareholders;
- (d) other matters concerning rights and obligations incidental to preferred Shares; and
- (e) the procedure and method by which the Company is authorized or compelled to redeem the preferred Shares, or a statement that redemption rights shall not apply.
- 5. Unless otherwise provided for in these Articles, the issue of new shares of the Company shall be approved by a majority of the Directors at a meeting attended by two-thirds or more of the total number of the Directors. The issue of new shares shall at all time be subject to the sufficiency of the authorized share capital of the Company.
- 6. Where the Company increases its issued share capital by issuing new shares for cash consideration in the ROC, the Company shall allocate 10% of the total amount of the new shares to be issued, for offering in the ROC to the public unless it is not necessary or appropriate, as determined by the FSC, TSE or GTSM, for the Company to conduct the aforementioned public offering. However, if a percentage higher than the aforementioned 10% is resolved by a general meeting to be offered, the percentage determined by such resolution shall prevail. The Company may also reserve up to 15% of such newly issued shares for subscription by employees of the

Company and/or of the Company's Subsidiary(ies). For the avoidance of doubt, this Article 6 does not apply to issuance of Shares resulting from or in connection with any merger, consolidation, spin-off, amalgamation, asset acquisition, reorganization, share swap, share subdivision, stock exchange, conversion of convertible securities, debt instruments or preferred Shares, other issuance of shares for consideration other than cash, issuance of Shares upon exercise of share options, warrants, awards or other rights, or issuance of Restricted Shares ("Excluded Issuance").

- Unless otherwise resolved by the Members at a general meeting by Ordinary Resolution, where the Company increases its issued share capital by issuing new Shares for cash consideration, the Company shall make a public announcement and notify each Member that he/she/it is entitled to exercise a pre-emptive right to purchase his/her/its pro rata portion of the remaining new Shares (after allocation of the public offering portion and the employee subscription portion pursuant to Article 6) issued in the capital increase for cash consideration. The Company shall state in such announcement and notices to the Members that if any Member fails to subscribe for his/her/its pro rata portion of such remaining newly-issued Shares within the prescribed period, such Member shall be deemed to forfeit his/her/its pre-emptive right to subscribe for such newly-issued Shares. In the event that the number of Shares held by a Member is insufficient for such Member to exercise the pre-emptive right to subscribe for one newly-issued Share, Shares held by several Members may be calculated together for joint subscription of newly-issued Shares or for subscription of newly-issued Shares in the name of a single Member pursuant to the Applicable Public Company Rules. If the total number of the new Shares to be issued has not been fully subscribed for by the Members within the prescribed period, the Company may consolidate such Shares into the public offering tranche or offer any un-subscribed new Shares to a specific person or persons according to the Applicable Public Company Rules. The foregoing Members' pre-emptive right shall not apply to an Excluded Issuance.
- 8. The Company shall not issue any nil-paid Shares or partly paid-up shares.
- 9. The Company may, upon approval by majority of the Directors at a meeting attended by two-thirds or more of all the Directors, adopt one or more incentive programmes and may issue Shares or options, warrants or other similar instruments, to employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries. Any such employee who also acts as Director of the Company may participate in the incentive programmes in his/her capacity as an employee and not as a director of the Company.

The maximum aggregate number of the Shares that may be subject to subscription pursuant to any such incentive programme shall be 15% of then registered issued Shares.

- 10. Options, warrants or other similar instruments issued in accordance with Article 9 above are not transferable except for inheritance.
- 10-1. To the extent permitted under and subject to the Applicable Public Company Rules and the Statute, the Company may, with the approval of a Supermajority Resolution, issue new Shares with restricted rights ("**Restricted Shares**") solely to employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries and Article 6 and 7 shall not apply to such issue of Shares. The terms of issue of Restricted Shares, including but not limited to the number, issue price, issue conditions and other related matters, shall comply with the Applicable Public Company Rules. The Company may repurchase the Restricted Shares issued to the relevant employees pursuant to Article 120-3 hereof if the vesting conditions set forth in the plan of Restricted Shares are not met.
- 11. The Company may enter into agreements with employees of the Company and the employees of its Subsidiaries in relation to the incentive programme approved pursuant to Article 9 above, whereby employees may subscribe, within a specific period, a specific number of the Shares at an agreed subscription price. The terms and conditions of such agreements shall be no less restrictive on relevant employee than the terms specified in the applicable incentive programme.
- 12. The Company shall not issue Shares in bearer form. The Company shall not issue Shares without nominal or par value.
- 13. The Company shall maintain or cause to be maintained the Register of Members.

VARIATION OF RIGHTS OF SHARES

14. Except as otherwise provided for herein, if at any time the share capital of the Company is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to any class (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class) may, whether or not the Company is being wound-up, be varied with the sanction of a Special Resolution passed at a general meeting of the holders of the shares of that class. Notwithstanding the forgoing, if any modification or alteration in these Articles is prejudicial to the preferential rights of any class of Shares, in addition to

the Special Resolution, such modification or alternation shall also be approved by a Special Resolution passed in a separate general meeting of the holders of the shares of that class.

- 15. The provisions of these Articles relating to general meetings shall apply to every such general meeting of the holders of one class of shares except that the necessary quorum shall be one person holding or representing by proxy at least a majority of the issued shares of the class.
- 16. The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall be deemed to be varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking in priority to or pari passu therewith.

TRANSFER OF SHARES

- 17. The instrument of transfer of any shares, if required, shall be in writing and shall be executed by or on behalf of the transferor and the transferor shall be deemed to remain the holder of a share until the name of the transferee is entered in the Register of Members in respect thereof.
 - 18. The transfer of Share may be conducted via the following methods.
- (a) Subject to these Articles and the Applicable Public Company Rules, any Member may transfer all or any of his/her/its Shares by an instrument of transfer. The transferor shall be deemed to remain the holder of a Share until the name of the transferee is entered in the Register of Members.
- (b) Notwithstanding Article 18(a) above, the Board may, subject to the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and if so permitted, allow shares of any class in the Company to be transferred without an instrument of transfer by means of a relevant system, including that of the TDCC or any method of transferring or dealing in securities introduced by GTSM or TSE. The Company shall, by notice, require the holder of Shares to give instructions, or appoint a person to give instructions, necessary to transfer title to that Share by means of the relevant system pursuant to the applicable regulations, the facilities and the requirements of the relevant system; provided that such instructions shall be subject always to these Articles and the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Applicable Public Company Rules.

NONRECOGNITION OF TRUSTS

19. No person shall be recognized by the Company as holding any share upon any trust, and the Company shall not be bound by or be compelled in any way to recognize (even when having notice thereof), any equitable, contingent, future or partial interest in any share, or any interest in any fractional part of a share or (except only as is otherwise provided by these Articles or the Statute) any other rights in respect of any share, except an absolute right to the entirety thereof in the registered holder.

REGISTRATION OF EMPOWERING INSTRUMENTS

20. The Company shall be entitled to charge a reasonable fee on the registration of every probate, letters of administration, certificate of death or marriage, power of attorney or other instrument.

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

- 21. In case of the death of a Member, the survivor or survivors where the deceased was a joint holder, and legal personal representatives of the deceased where he was a sole holder, shall be the only persons recognized by the Company as having any title to his interest in the shares, but nothing herein contained shall release the estate of any such deceased holder from any liability in respect of any shares which had been held by him solely or jointly with other persons.
- 22. Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy or liquidation or dissolution of a Member (or in any other way than by transfer) may, upon such evidence being produced as may from time to time be required by the Board and subject as hereinafter provided, elect either to be registered himself as holder of the share or to make such transfer of the share to such other person nominated by him as the deceased or bankrupt person could have made and to have such person registered as the transferee thereof, but the Board shall, in either case, have the same right to decline or suspend registration as they would have had in the case of a transfer of the share by that Member before his death or bankruptcy as the case may be. If the person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered himself as holder, he shall deliver or send to the Company a notice in writing signed by him stating that he so elects.

23. A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or bankruptcy or liquidation or dissolution of the holder (or in any other case than by transfer) shall be entitled to the same dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the registered holder of the share, except that he shall not, before being registered as a Member in respect of the share, be entitled in respect of it to exercise any right conferred by membership in relation to meetings of the Company; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that the Board may at any time give notice requiring any such person to elect either to be registered himself or to transfer the share and, if the notice is not complied with within ninety (90) days, the Board may thereafter withhold payment of all dividends, bonuses or other monies payable in respect of the share until the requirements of the notice have been complied with.

AMENDMENT OF MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES, CHANGE OF LOCATION OF REGISTERED OFFICE AND ALTERATION OF CAPITAL

- 24. (a) Subject to and insofar as permitted by the provisions of the Statute, the Company may from time to time by Ordinary Resolution:
- (i) increase the share capital by such sum to be divided into shares of such amount as the Ordinary Resolution shall prescribe, and with such rights, priorities and privileges annexed thereto, as the Company in general meeting may determine:
- (ii) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amount than its existing shares;
- (iii) by subdivision of its existing shares or any of them divide the whole or any part of its share capital into shares of smaller amount than is fixed by the Memorandum of Association
- (iv) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the Ordinary Resolution, have not been taken or agreed to be taken by any person and diminish the amount of its authorized share capital by the amount of the Shares so cancelled.
- (b) All new shares created hereunder shall be subject to the same provisions with reference to transfer, transmission, and otherwise as the shares in the original share capital.

- (c) Subject to the provisions of the Statute, the Company may by Special Resolution
 - (i) change its name or alter its objects;
- (ii) reduce its share capital and any capital redemption reserve fund;
 - (iii) alter or add to these Articles; and
 - (iv) alter or add to the Memorandum with respect to any objects, powers or other matters specified therein.
 - (d) Subject to the provisions of the Statute, the Company may by resolution of the Board change the location of its registered office. The Company may in addition to its Register Office, maintain such offices or places of business as the Board may determine.
 - (e) Subject to the Statute, the Company may from time to time by Supermajority Resolution
 - (i) effect any capitalization of distributable dividends and/or bonuses and/or any other amount prescribed under Article 121 hereof;
 - (ii) effect any merger (other than a Cayman Merger) or spin-off of the Company;
 - (iii) enter into ,amend, or terminate any contract for lease of the Company's business in whole, or for delegation of management of the Company's business to others, or for regular joint operation with others;
 - (iv) transfer its business or assets, in whole or in any essential part;
 - (v) acquire or assume the whole business or assets of another person, which has a material effect on the Company operation; or;
 - (vi) issue the Restricted Shares.
 - (f) Subject to the Statute, with regard to the dissolution procedure of the Company, the Company shall pass:

- (i) an Ordinary Resolution, in the event that the Company resolves that it be wound up voluntarily because the Company is unable to pay its debts as they fall due; or
- (ii) a Special Resolution, in the event that the Company resolves that it be wound up voluntarily for reasons other than that as set out in Article 24(f)(i) above.
- (g) Subject to the Statute, the Company shall not, without the approval of Supermajority Resolution, issue securities, including options, warrants and convertible bonds, pursuant to a statutory private placement in accordance with Applicable Public Company Rules.
- (h) Subject to the Statute and Applicable Public Company Rules, the Company may by Ordinary Resolution redeem or purchase its own Shares by reducing and making payment out of its share capital. Any such redemption or purchase and the payment out of share capital must be made to all Members pro rata based on the percentage of shareholdings of the Members, unless otherwise provided for in the Statute or the Applicable Public Company Rules.

Upon approval by Ordinary Resolution, the Company may make payments in respect of such redemption or purchase to any Member in proportion to their respective shareholdings in the Company either by cash or by distribution of specific assets of the Company, provided however, that where assets other than cash are distributed to the Members, the type of assets, the value of the assets and the corresponding amount of such substitutive distribution shall be (a) assessed by an ROC certified public accountant before being submitted to the Members for approval; (b) approved by the Members by Ordinary Resolution and (c) agreed to by the Member who will receive such assets.

GENERAL MEETING

- 25. The Company shall in each year hold a general meeting as its annual general meeting within six (6) months following the end of each financial year, and shall specify the meeting as such in the notices calling it. Subject to this Article, the annual general meeting shall be held at such time and place as the Board of Directors shall appoint.
- 26. General meetings other than annual general meetings shall be called extraordinary general meetings.

- 27. Unless otherwise provided by the Statute, all general meetings shall be held in the ROC. If the Board resolves to hold a general meeting outside the ROC, the Company shall seek approval from the GTSM or the TSE therefor within two (2) days after the Board adopts such resolution. Where a general meeting is to be held outside the ROC, the Company shall engage a professional stock affairs agent in the ROC to handle the administration matters of such general meeting (including but not limited to the handling of the voting of proxies submitted by any Members).
- 28. The Directors may, whenever they think fit, and they shall on the requisition of Members of the Company, holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than three percentage (3%) of the total number of the issued shares at the date of the deposit of requisition and whose Shares shall have been held by such Member(s) for at least one (1) year to the date of the deposit of requisition, proceed to convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.
- (a) The requisition must state in writing the matters to be discussed at the extraordinary general meeting and the reason therefor and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Registered Office, and may consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.
- (b) If the Board does not within fifteen (15) days from the date of the deposit of the requisition dispatch the notice to convene an extraordinary general meeting, the requisitionists may themselves convene an extraordinary general meeting, provided that if the extraordinary general meeting will be held outside the ROC, an application shall be submitted by such requisitionists to the GTSM or the TSE for its prior approval and provided further that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three (3) months after the expiration of the said fifteen (15) days.
- (c) A general meeting convened as aforesaid by requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner as nearly as possible as that in which general meetings are to be convened by the Board.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

29. At least thirty (30) days' notice of an annual general meeting, shall be given to each Member entitled to attend and vote thereat stating the date, place and time at which the meeting is to be held and the general nature of business to be considered at the meeting. The foregoing 30-day period shall be exclusive of the date on which it is given or deemed to be given and of the date of the meeting.

- 30. At least fifteen (15) days' notice of an extraordinary general meeting, shall be given to each Member entitled to attend and vote thereat, stating the date, place and time at which the meeting is to be held and the general nature of the business to be considered at the meeting. The foregoing 15-day period shall be exclusive of the date on which it is given or deemed to be given and of the date of the meeting.
- 31. A general meeting of the Company shall, notwithstanding that it is called on shorter notice than that specified in these Articles, be deemed to have been properly called if it is so agreed by all the Members entitled to attend an annual general meeting or an extraordinary general meeting (as the case may be).
- 32. The accidental omission to give notice of a general meeting to, or the non-receipt of a notice of a general meeting by, any person entitled to receive notice shall not invalidate the proceedings at that meeting.
- 33. For so long as the Shares are listed on the GTSM or the TSE, the Company shall send materials relating to the matters to be discussed in the meetings together with the notice, in accordance with Article 29 and Article 30 hereof, and shall transmit the same via the Market Observation Post System. If the voting power of a Member at a general meeting shall be exercised by way of a written ballot, the Company shall also send the written document used for the exercise of voting power together with the above mentioned materials. The Company shall prepare a meeting handbook of the relevant general meeting and supplemental materials, which will be sent to or made available to all Members and shall be transmitted to the Market Observation Post System in accordance with Applicable Public Company Rules twenty-one (21) days prior to the annual general meetings or, in the case of extraordinary general meetings, fifteen (15) days prior to such meeting.
- 34. The following matters shall be stated in the notice of general meetings, with a summary of the material content to be discussed, and shall not be brought up as an ad hoc motion:
 - (a) election or discharge of Directors,
 - (b) alteration of the Articles,
 - (c) (i) dissolution, merger or spin-off, (ii) entering into, amending, or terminating any contract for lease of the Company's business in whole, or the delegation of management of the Company's business to others or the regular joint operation of the Company with others, (iii) transfer of the Company's business or

assets, in whole or in any essential part, (iv) acquisition or assumption of the whole business or assets of another person, which has a material effect on the Company's operation,

- (d) ratification of an action by Director(s) who engage(s) in business for him/herself or on behalf of another person, other than Subsidiary(ies), that is within the scope of the Company's business,
- (e) distribution of the whole or part of the profit of the Company in the form of new Shares, distribution of Capital Reserve or statutory reserve in the form of cash, capitalization of Capital Reserve and any other amount in accordance with Article 121;
- (f) private placement of any equity-type securities issued by the Company;
- (g) transfer of Treasury Shares to any employee of the Company and its Subsidiaries at a price below the average repurchase price paid by the Company.
- 35. The Board shall cause these Articles, minutes of general meetings, financial statements, the Register of Members, and the counterfoil of any corporate bonds issued by the Company to be placed at the Company's stock affairs agent located in the ROC. Members may request, from time to time, by submitting document(s) evidencing his/her interests involved and indicating the designated scope of the inspection, access to inspect, review or make copies of the foregoing documents.
- 36. The Company shall make available all statements and records prepared by the Board and the report prepared by the Audit Committee, which will be submitted to the Members at the annual general meeting, at its stock affairs agent located in the ROC ten (10) days prior to such annual general meeting in accordance with Applicable Public Company Rules. Members may inspect and review the foregoing documents from time to time and may be accompanied by their lawyers or certified public accountants for the purpose of such inspection and review.
- 37. The Board may postpone any general meeting called in accordance with these Articles and a notice of postponement shall be given to each Member before the time scheduled for such meeting. A notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting.

38. The Directors of the Company shall be entitled to receive notice of, attend and be heard at the general meeting.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

- 39. No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of Members is present at the time when the meeting proceeds to business. Unless otherwise provided for in the Articles, the quorum shall be Members present in person or by proxy holding a majority of total outstanding shares. For the purpose of calculation of the quorum for the general meeting, shares which do not carry the voting right shall not be counted in the total number of outstanding Shares. Members present in person or by proxy at a meeting at which a quorum is present when the meeting proceeds to business may continue to do business until adjournment notwithstanding that a quorum ceases to exist provided any action is approved by at least a majority of the holders required to constitute a quorum except otherwise provided for in the Articles.
- 40. At the close of each fiscal year, the Board shall submit business reports, financial statements and proposals for distribution of profits or allocation of losses prepared by it for the purposes of annual general meetings of the Company which shall be held within six (6) months following the end of each fiscal year for ratification by the Members as required by the Applicable Public Company Rules. After ratification by the Members at the general meeting, the Board shall distribute copies or make a public announcement of the ratified financial statements and the Company's resolutions on the allocation and distribution of profits or allocation of losses, to each Member in accordance with the Applicable Public Company Rules.
- 41. If, upon the time appointed for the general meeting a quorum is not present, the chairman may postpone the general meeting for two (2) times at most and for up to one (1) hour in total with the same quorum requirements as the meeting originally convened as set out in Article 39. If after two (2) postponements the number of shares represented by the attending Members has not yet constituted the quorum required for such meeting, the chairman of the general meeting shall dissolve the meeting or adjourn the meeting to the same day in the next week at the same time and place. If at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within an hour from the time appointed for the meeting, the chairman of the general meeting shall dissolve the meeting.

- 42. At any general meeting, unless otherwise provided in the Articles, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a poll.
- 43. A vote by way of a show of hands in lieu of a poll shall not be permitted.
- 44. Nothing in the Articles shall prevent any Member from initiating proceedings in a court of competent jurisdiction for an appropriate remedy in connection with the improper convening of any general meeting or the improper passage of any resolution within thirty (30) days after the passage of such resolution. To the extent permitted by Applicable Laws, the Taiwan Taipei District Court, ROC, may be the court of first instance for adjudicating any disputes arising out of the foregoing.
- 45. Unless otherwise expressly required by the Statute, the Memorandum or the Articles, any matter which has been presented for resolutions, approval, confirmation or adoption by the Members at any general meeting may be passed by Ordinary Resolution.
- 46. Member(s) holding 1% or more of the total outstanding Shares immediately prior to the relevant book close period, during which the Company closed its Register of Members, may propose to the Company a proposal for discussion at an annual general meeting in writing. Proposals shall not be included in the agenda of the annual general meeting where (a) the proposing Member(s) holds less than 1% of the total number of outstanding Shares, (b) the matter of such proposal may not be resolved by a general meeting; or (c) the proposing Member(s) has proposed more than one proposal.
- 47. The rules and procedures of general meeting shall be established by the Board and approved by an Ordinary Resolution, and such rules and procedures shall be in accordance with these Articles and the Applicable Public Company Rules.

VOTES OF MEMBERS

48. Subject to any rights or restrictions attached to any Shares, every Member who being an individual is present in person or by proxy or, if a corporation or other non-natural person is present by its duly authorized representative or by proxy. Each Member who is present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for every share of which he/she/it is the holder. A Member holding more than one Share is required to cast the votes in respect of his/her/its Shares in the same way on any

resolution at a general meeting unless otherwise provided by the Applicable Public Company Rules, in which case the casting of votes shall comply with the Applicable Public Company Rules.

- 49. In the case of joint holders of record, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders, and for this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the register of Members.
- 50. A Member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by any court, having jurisdiction in lunacy, may vote on a poll by his committee, receiver, curator bonis, or other person in the nature of a committee, receiver or curator bonis appointed by that court, and any such committee, receiver, curator bonis or other persons may vote by proxy.
- 51. No Member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless he is registered as a member of the Company on the record date for such meeting, nor unless all calls or other sums presently payable by him in respect of shares in the Company have been paid.
- 52. Votes may be cast either in person or by proxy. A Member may appoint another person as his/her/its proxy by specifying the scope of appointment in the proxy instrument prepared by the Company to attend and vote at a general meeting, provided that a Member may appoint only one proxy under one instrument to attend and vote at such meeting.
- 53. The Board may determine that the voting power of a Member at a general meeting may be exercised by way of a written ballot or by way of electronic transmission provided that the Board shall allow the voting power of a Member at a general meeting to be exercised by way of electronic transmission if the size of the Company, number and types of Members or other matters meets the threshold set forth in the Applicable Public Company Rules; provided, however, that if a general meeting is to be held outside of the ROC, the Company shall provide the Members with a method for exercising their voting power by way of a written ballot or electronic transmission. The method for exercising such voting power shall be described in the general meeting notice to be given to the Members if the voting power may be exercised by way of a written ballot or electronic transmission. A Member who exercises his/her/its voting power at a general meeting by way of a written ballot or by electronic transmission shall be deemed to be present in person at such general meeting, but any Member voting in such manner shall not be entitled to

notice of, and the right to vote in regard to, any ad hoc motion or amendment to the original agenda items to be resolved at the said general meeting. For the purposes of clarification, such Member voting in such manner shall be deemed to have waived notice of, and the right to vote in regard to, any ad hoc motion or amendment to the original agenda items to be resolved at the said general meeting.

- 53-1. In the event that the voting power of a Member at a general meeting may be exercised by way of a written ballot or by way of electronic transmission, any Member intending to exercise his/her/its voting power by way of a written ballot or electronic transmission shall serve the Company with his/her/its declaration of intention to do so at least two (2) days prior to the general meeting. If a Member serves the Company with more than one declaration of intention to exercise his/her/its voting power by way of a written ballot or electronic transmission, the first declaration shall prevail, unless an explicit written statement is made thereafter by such Member to revoke the previous declaration of intention in the same manner as previously used in exercising his/her/its voting power.
- 54. In the event any Member who has served the Company with his/her/its declaration of intention to exercise his/her/its voting power by way of a written ballot or electronic transmission pursuant to Article 53 and 53-1 hereof later intends to attend the general meetings in person, he/she/it shall, at least two (2) days prior to the date of such general meeting, serve a separate declaration of intention to revoke his/her/its previous declaration of intention in the same manner as previously used in exercising his/her/its voting power. Votes by way of a written ballot or electronic transmission shall remain valid if the relevant Member fails to revoke the declaration of intention before the prescribed time.

CLOSING REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND FIXING RECORD DATES

55. For purposes of determining the Members entitled to notice of any meeting of Members or any adjournment thereof, or Members entitled to receive payment of any Dividend or other distribution, or in order to make a determination of Members for any other purpose, the Board may provide that the Register of Members shall be closed for transfers for a stated period as prescribed by the Applicable Public Company Rules. For so long as the Shares are listed on the GTSM or the TSE, the Register of Members shall be closed at least for a period of sixty (60) days, thirty (30) days and five (5) days immediately before the date of each annual general meeting (inclusive), the date of each extraordinary general meeting (inclusive) and the record date for a Dividend distribution (inclusive), respectively.

56. The Board of Directors may fix, in advance, a record date, which shall not be more than sixty (60) days nor less than five (5) days before the date of any such meeting, nor more than sixty (60) days before any such action without a meeting, and in such event only members of record on the date so fixed are entitled to notice, to vote or to give consents, and to receive payment of any Dividend or other distribution, as the case may be, notwithstanding the registration of any transfer of any shares.

PROXIES

- 57. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing and shall be executed under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorized in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorized in that behalf. A proxy need not be a Member of the Company. For so long as the Shares are listed on the GTSM or the TSE, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be in any usual form or common form approved by the Board from time to time and may be expressed to be for a particular meeting or any adjournment thereof.
- 58. Subject to the Applicable Public Company Rules, except for trust enterprises organized under the laws of the ROC or a stock affairs agent approved pursuant to Applicable Public Company Rules, in the event a person acts as the proxy for two or more Members, the sum of Shares entitled to be voted as represented by such proxy shall be no more than 3% of the total outstanding voting Shares immediately prior to the relevant Register of Member closed period, during which the Company closes its Register of Members; any vote in respect of the portion in excess of such 3% threshold shall not be counted.
- 59. The instrument of proxy shall be deposited at the Registered Office or the office of the Company's stock affairs agent in the ROC or at such other place as is specified for that purpose in the notice convening the meeting, or in any instrument of proxy sent out by the Company no less than five (5) days before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote. Where more than one instrument to vote are received from the same Member by the Company, the first instrument received shall prevail, unless an explicit written statement is made by the relevant Member to revoke the previous proxy in the later-received instrument.

- 60. In the event that a Member exercises his/her/its voting power by way of a written ballot or electronic transmission and has also authorized a proxy to attend a general meeting, then the voting power exercised by the proxy at the general meeting shall prevail.
- 61. For so long as the Shares are listed on the GTSM or the TSE, the use and solicitation of proxies shall be in compliance with the Applicable Public Company Rules, including but not limited to "Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies".

CORPORATE MEMBERS

62. Any corporation or other non-natural person which is a Member may in accordance with its constitutional documents, or in the absence of such provision by resolution of its directors or other governing body, authorize such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any meeting of the Company or of any class of Members, and the person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of the corporation which he represents as the corporation could exercise if it were an individual Member of record of the Company.

DISSENTING MEMBER'S APPRAISAL RIGHT

- 63. In the event any of the following resolutions is adopted at a general meeting, any Member who has notified the Company in writing of his/her/its dissent to such a resolution prior to the meeting and has raised again his/her/its dissent at the meeting, is entitled to exercise his/her/its appraisal rights in accordance with these Articles:
 - (a) the Company enters into, amends, or terminates any contract for lease of the Company's business in whole, or the delegation of management of the Company's business to others or the regular joint operation of the Company with others:
 - (b) the Company transfers its business or assets, in whole or in any essential part; provided that the foregoing does not apply where such transfer is pursuant to the dissolution of the Company;

- (c) the Company spins off any of its department or business which operates or is able to operate, independently or is involved in any merger with any other company; and
- (d) the Company acquires or assumes the transfer of the whole business or assets of another person, which has a material effect on the Company's operations.
- 64. Upon the occurrence of an event described in Articles 63 above, the dissenting Member shall give a written notice to request the Company to acquire or purchase his/her/its shares no later than twenty (20) days after the date on which the resolution was passed at the then prevailing fair market price determined by the Board in good faith, and shall state in such request the class and number of shares that such Member requests the Company to repurchase.
- 65. If agreement on the price of the shares can be reached between the dissenting Member and the Company, the Company shall, subject to compliance with these Articles and the Applicable Law, repurchase and pay for the shares within ninety (90) days from the date on which the resolution was passed. If no agreement is reached within sixty (60) days from the date on which the resolution was passed, the dissenting Member may, within 30 days after the last day of the above 60-day period, apply to a competent court for a ruling on the price.
- 66. The payment of repurchase price to the Members shall be made at the same time against the delivery of a declaration and an instrument of transfer in respect of the shares subject to the repurchase duly executed by such Member to the Company, and the date of repurchase of such shares shall be the date on which the payment is made and the Register of Members of the Company shall be updated accordingly.
- 67. The request of a Member pursuant to Articles 63 and 64 shall become ineffective if the Company announces that the Company will no longer proceed with the matters referred to in the relevant resolutions irrespective of whether a Member may have exercised its appraisal right under Articles 63 and 64 or where the Company is prohibited under Applicable Law to repurchase the relevant shares. Where a Member fails to make a request within the period prescribed in Articles 64 and 65 above, such Member is deemed to have duly waived its appraisal rights under Articles 63 and 64.

SHARES THAT MAY NOT BE VOTED

- 68. Shares held as set out below shall not carry any voting rights and shall not be counted in the total number of outstanding Shares at any given time:
 - (a) beneficially owned by the Company itself;
- (b) by any entity in which the Company owns, legally or beneficially, more than 50% of its issued and voting share capital or equity capital; or
- (c) by an entity in which the Company, together with (i) the holding company of the Company and/or (ii) any Subsidiary of (a) the holding company of the Company or (b) the Company owns, legally or beneficially, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of its issued and voting share capital or equity capital.
- 69. A Member who has a personal interest in any motion discussed at a general meeting, which interest may impair those of the Company, shall abstain from voting his/her/its shares in regard to such motion and such shares shall not be counted in the number of votes of Members for such motion pursuant to the Applicable Public Company Rules, but such shares may be counted in determining the number of shares of the Members present at the such general meeting for the purposes of determining the quorum. Where the aforesaid Member is appointed as a proxy to attend and vote at the general meeting for on behalf of another Member, if so required under Applicable Public Company Rules, he shall abstain from voting as proxy.
- 69-1 If any Director creates or has created security over any Shares held by him, he shall notify the Company of such security. If the security created by a Director is in respect of more than half of the Shares held by him at the time of his appointment, then the voting rights attaching to the Shares held by such Director at such time shall be reduced, such that the Shares over which security has been created which are in excess of half of the Shares held by the Director at the date of his appointment shall not carry voting rights and shall not be counted in the number of votes casted by the Members at a general meeting.

DIRECTORS

70. There shall be a Board of Directors consisting of five (5) to nine (9) Directors (exclusive of alternate Directors), each of whom shall be appointed to a term of office of three (3) years. Directors may be eligible for re-election. The Company may from time to time by Special Resolution, increase or reduce the limits

in the number of Directors set forth in this Article, provided that the requirements by relevant Applicable Laws (including without limitation to any listing requirements) are met. After Directors are elected pursuant to Article 102, there shall be one Chairman and one Vice Chairman elected pursuant to the rules and procedures of the meeting of the Board of the Company. For the avoidance of doubt, when the Chairman is on leave or for any reason is unable to exercise the power of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall do so in place of all powers and authorities of the Chairman set forth in these Articles.

- 71. The number of Directors having a spousal relationship or familial relationship within the second degree of kinship with any other Directors shall be less than half of the total number of Directors.
- 72. In the event that the Company convenes a general meeting for the election of Directors and any of the Directors elected does not meet the requirements provided in Article 71 hereof, the non-qualifying Director(s) who was elected with the fewest number of votes shall be deemed not to have been elected, to the extent necessary to meet the requirements provided for in Article 71 hereof. Any person who has already served as a Director but is in violation of the aforementioned requirements shall vacate his/her/its position of Director automatically.
- 73. Unless otherwise permitted under the Applicable Public Company Rules, there shall be at least three (3) Independent Directors, provided, however, that the total number of Independent Directors shall not less than one-fifth (1/5) or more of the total number of the Directors. To the extent required by the Applicable Public Company Rules, at least one (1) of the Independent Directors shall be domiciled in the ROC and at least one (1) of the same shall have accounting or financial expertise.
- 74. Independent Directors shall have professional knowledge and, when performing their duties or exercising their authorities, Independent Directors shall maintain independence and shall not have direct or indirect interests in the Company other than as permitted under the Applicable Public Company Rules. The professional qualifications, restrictions on shareholdings and concurrent positions, and assessment of independence with respect to Independent Directors shall be governed by the Applicable Public Company Rules.
- 75. The remuneration to be paid to the Directors is authorized to be decided by the Board with reference to the standard generally adopted by other enterprises in the same industry (the "Base Director Remuneration"). The Directors shall also be entitled to be paid their traveling, hotel and other expenses

properly incurred by them in going to, attending and returning from meetings of the Board, any committee appointed by the Board, or general meetings of the Company, or otherwise in connection with the business of the Company or their duties as Directors generally, or to receive a fixed allowance in respect thereof pursuant to a service agreement or contract with the Company, or a combination partly of one such method and partly the other.

- 76. The Directors may by resolution award special remuneration to any Director of the Company undertaking any special work or services for, or undertaking any special mission on behalf of, the Company other than his ordinary routine work as a Director. Any fees paid to a Director who is also counsel or solicitor to the Company, or otherwise serves it in a professional capacity, shall be in addition to his remuneration as a Director.
- 77. A Director or alternate Director may hold any other office or place of profit under the Company in conjunction with his office of Director for such period and on such terms as to remuneration and otherwise as the Directors may determine.
- 78. A Director or alternate Director may act by himself or his firm in a professional capacity for the Company and he or his firm shall be entitled to remuneration for professional services as if he were not a Director or alternate Director.
- 79. A shareholding qualification for Directors may be fixed by the Company in general meeting, but unless and until so fixed, no qualification shall be required.
- 80. A Director or alternate Director of the Company may be or become a director or other officer of or otherwise interested in any company promoted by the Company, or in which the Company may be interested as a member or otherwise, and no such Director or alternate Director shall be accountable to the Company for any remuneration or other benefits received by him as a director or officer of, or from his interest in, such other company.
- 81. A Director or alternate Director who is a member, director, officer or employee of any specified firm or company and is to be regarded as interested in any transaction with such firm or company shall declare and disclose the nature of such interest to the Company as required by the Applicable Laws, and abstain from voting in respect of any contract or transaction in which he is so interested as aforesaid. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no person shall be disqualified from the office of

Director or alternate Director or prevented by such office from contracting with the Company, either as vendor, purchaser or otherwise, nor shall any such contract or any contract or transaction entered into by or on behalf of the Company in which any Director or alternate Director shall be in any way interested be or be liable to be avoided, nor shall any Director or alternate Director so contracting or being so interested be liable to account to the Company for any profit realized by any such contract or transaction by reason of such Director holding office or of the fiduciary relation thereby established.

82. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in these Articles, a Director who has a personal interest in the manner under discussion at a meeting of the Board, which may impair the interest of the Company, shall not vote nor exercise voting rights on behalf of another Director; the voting right of such Director who cannot vote or exercise any voting or exercise any voting right as prescribed above shall not be counted in the number of votes of Directors present at the meeting of the Board for the purpose of that resolution.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

83. A Director who expects to be unable to attend Directors' meetings because of absence, illness or otherwise may appoint any person to be an alternate Director to act in his stead and such appointee whilst he holds office as an alternate Director shall, in the event of absence therefrom of his appointor, be entitled to attend meetings of the Directors and to vote thereat and to do, in the place and stead of his appointor, any other act or thing which his appointor is permitted or required to do by virtue of his being a Director as if the alternate Director were the appointor, other than appointment of an alternate to himself, and he shall ipso facto vacate office if and when his appointor ceases to be a Director or removes the appointee from office. Any appointment or removal under this Article shall be effected by notice in writing under the hand of the Director making the same.

POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

84. The business of the Company shall be managed by the Directors who may pay all expenses incurred in promoting, registering and setting up the Company, and may exercise all such powers of the Company as are not, from time to time by the Statue, by the Applicable Public Company Rules or by these Articles, or such regulations, being not inconsistent with the aforesaid, as may be prescribed by the Company in general meeting required to be exercised by the Company in general

meeting; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that no regulations made by the Company in general meeting shall invalidate any prior act of the Directors which would have been valid if that regulation had not been made.

- 85. Subject to Article 84 above, the Directors may from time to time and at any time by powers of attorney appoint any company, firm, person or body of persons, whether nominated directly or indirectly by the Directors, to be the attorney or attorneys of the Company for such purpose and with such powers, authorities and discretions (not exceeding those vested in or exercisable by the Directors under these Articles) and for such period and subject to such conditions as they may think fit, and any such powers of attorney may contain such provisions for the protection and convenience of persons dealing with any such attorneys as the Directors may think fit and may also authorize any such attorney to delegate all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions vested in him.
- 86. All checks, promissory notes, drafts, bills of exchange and other negotiable instruments and all receipts for monies paid to the Company shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed or otherwise executed as the case may be in such manner as the Directors shall from time to time by resolution determine.
- 87. The Board shall cause minutes to be made in books provided for the purpose:
 - (a) of all appointments of officers made by the Board;
- (b) of the names of the Directors (including those represented thereat by an alternate or by proxy) present at each meeting of the Board and of any committee of the Board; or
- (c) of all resolutions and proceedings at all meetings of the Members or holders of any class of Shares, of the Board and of committees of the Board.
- 88. Subject to the Articles, the Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge its undertaking, property and uncalled capital or any part thereof and to issue debentures, debenture stock and other securities, whether outright or as security for any debt, liability or obligation of the Company or of any third party.

MANAGEMENT

- 89. The Directors may from time to time provide for the management of the affairs of the Company in such manner as they shall think fit and the provisions contained in the three (3) next following paragraphs shall be without prejudice to the general powers conferred by this paragraph.
- (a) The Directors from time to time and at any time may establish any committees, local boards or agencies for managing any of the affairs of the Company and may appoint any persons to be members of such committees or local boards or any managers or agents and may fix their remuneration.
- (b) The Directors from time to time and at any time may delegate to any such committee, local board, manager or agent any of the powers, authorities and discretions for the time being vested in the Directors and may authorize the members for the time being of any such local board, or any of them, to fill up any vacancies therein and to act notwithstanding vacancies and any such appointment or delegation may be made on such terms and subject to such conditions as the Directors may think fit and the Directors may at any time remove any person so appointed and may annul or vary any such delegation, but no person dealing in good faith and without notice of any such annulment or variation shall be affected thereby.
- (c) Any such delegates as aforesaid may be authorized by the Directors to subdelegate all or any of the powers, authorities, and discretions for the time being vested in them.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

90. Except as otherwise provided by these Articles, the Directors shall meet together for the dispatch of business, convening, adjourning and otherwise regulating their meetings as they think fit. Questions arising at any meeting of the Board shall be decided, resolutions put to the vote at meeting of the Board shall be adopted and other action shall be taken only upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors and alternate Directors present at a meeting at which the Quorum of the Board Meeting is present and no resolution shall be passed in the case of an equality of votes. The chairman of the meeting does not have a second vote or casting vote. A Director who is also an alternate Director shall be entitled in the absence of his appointor to a separate vote on behalf of his appointor in addition to his own vote.

The vote of an alternate Director shall not be counted if his appointor is present at such meeting.

- 91. The Chairman may, and the Secretary on the requisition of the Chairman shall, at any time summon a meeting of the Board. Notice of a meeting of the Board shall be deemed to be duly given to a Director if it is given to such Director verbally (in person or by telephone) or otherwise communicated or sent to such Director by post, cable, telex, telecopier, facsimile, electronic mail or other mode of representing words in a legible form at such Director's last known address or any other address given by such Director to the Company for this purpose. At least seven (7) days' prior notice shall be given for any meeting of the Board of the Directors provided that the Board of Directors may meet at any time in case of any urgent circumstances where the majority of the Directors agree to waive notice of such meeting either at, before, or after the meeting is held. All such waivers, consents and approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made part of the minutes of the meeting. A waiver of notice need not specify the purpose of any regular or special meeting of the Board, of Directors.
- 92. A meeting at which a Quorum of the Board Meeting is initially present may continue to transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of Directors, if any action taken is approved by at least a majority of the vote of the Directors and alternate Directors present at a meeting at which the Quorum of the Board Meeting is present.
- 93. For the purposes of Article 90 an alternate Director or proxy appointed by a Director shall be counted in the Quorum of the Board Meeting at a meeting at which the Director appointing him is not present. A Director who also acts as an alternate Director shall, if his appointor is not present, count twice towards the Quorum of the Board Meeting.
- 94. The continuing Directors (or a sole continuing Director, as the case may be) may act notwithstanding any vacancy in their body, but if and so long as their number is reduced below the number fixed by or pursuant to the Articles, the continuing Directors or Director may act for the purpose of summoning a general meeting of the Company pursuant to Articles 103 and 104 below to appoint additional Directors so that the number of Directors will be equal to such fixed number, but for no other purpose.

- 95. The Directors may delegate any of their powers to committees consisting of such member or members of the Board of Directors (including alternate Directors in the absence of their appointors) as they think fit; any committee so formed shall in the exercise of the powers so delegated conform to any regulations that may be imposed on it by the Directors.
- 96. A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper. Except for otherwise provided in the Applicable Laws, questions arising at any meeting shall be determined by the affirmative vote of the majority of the committee members present.
- 97. All acts done by any meeting of the Directors or of a committee of Directors (including any person acting as an alternate Director) shall, notwithstanding that it be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of any Director or alternate Director, or that they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if every such person had been duly appointed and qualified to be a Director or alternate Director as the case may be.
- 98. Members of the Board or of any committee thereof may participate in a meeting of the Board or of such committee by means of video conference or similar communications facilities by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can see and communicate with each other at the same time and participation in a meeting pursuant to this manner shall be treated as presence in person at such meeting.
- 99. A Director but not an alternate Director may be represented at any meetings of the Board or committee of the Board by a proxy appointed in writing by him/her. A Director appointing another Director to attend a Board meeting as his or her proxy shall issue a proxy, valid only for the particular appointment, listing the powers and authorities in relation to the reasons for convening the meeting granted to the proxy agent. The proxy shall count towards the Quorum of the Board Meeting and the vote of the proxy shall for all purposes be deemed to be that of the appointing Director.
- 100. The rules and procedures of the meeting of the Board shall be established by the Board in accordance with these Articles and the Applicable Public Company Rules. Subject to the foregoing, the Directors may regulate their proceeding as they see fit.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

- 101. The Company may at a general meeting elect any person to be a Director, which vote shall be calculated in accordance with Article 102 below. Members present in person or by proxy, representing more than one-half of the total outstanding Shares shall constitute a quorum for any general meeting to elect one or more Directors
- 102. Directors shall be elected pursuant to Cumulative Voting pursuant to a poll vote, where the number of votes exercisable by any Member shall be the same as the product of the number of Shares held by such Member and the number of Directors to be elected ("Special Ballot Votes"), and the total number of Special Ballot Votes cast by any Member may be consolidated for election of one Director candidate or may be split for election amongst multiple Director candidates, as specified by the Member pursuant to the poll vote ballot. The top candidates in the number equal to the number of the Directors to be elected, to whom the votes cast represent a prevailing number of votes relative to the other candidates, shall be deemed Directors elected. For so long as the Shares are listed on the GTSM or the TSE, as applicable, (a) the Company may adopt a candidate nomination mechanism for the election of the Directors which is in compliance with the Applicable Public Company Rules. The rules and procedures for such candidate nomination shall be in accordance with policies established by the Board and by an Ordinary Resolution from time to time, which policies shall be in accordance with the Statute, the Memorandum, the Articles and the Applicable Public Company Rules; (b) subject to the requirement of the competent securities authority in the ROC, such candidate nomination mechanism in compliance with the Applicable Public Company Rules shall also be used for the election of Independent Directors.
- 103. If the number of Directors is less than five (5) persons due to the vacancy of Director(s) for any reason, the Company shall hold an election of Director(s) at the next following general meeting. When the number of vacancies of Directors fall short by one third (1/3) of the total number of Directors prescribed by these Articles, an extraordinary general meeting of Members shall be convened within sixty (60) days of the occurrence of that fact to hold a by-election of directors.
- 104. If the number of Independent Directors is less than three (3) persons due to the resignation or removal of any of the Independent Director(s) for any reason, the Company shall hold an election of Independent Directors at the next following general meeting. If all of the Independent Directors have resigned or are removed, the Company shall hold, within sixty (60) days from the occurrence of such resignations

or removals of the last Independent Directors, an extraordinary general meeting to elect Independent Directors to fill the vacancies.

RESIGNATION, REMOVAL AND DISQUALIFICATION

- 105. Any Director may resign effective on giving written notice to the Board of Directors, unless the notice specifies a later time for that resignation to become effective.
- 106. The Company may from time to time by Supermajority Resolution remove any Director from office, whether or not appointing another person to fill in the vacancy; provided that the Company may remove all Directors and elect new Directors to fill the vacancies at the same time in accordance with this Article and Article 102 and unless the resolution approving such removal and election provides otherwise, the existing Directors' office shall be automatically discharged upon the passing of such resolution prior to the expiration of such Directors' applicable period of office.
 - 107. The office of a Director shall be vacated if the Director:
 - (a) is removed from office pursuant to these Articles;
- (b) gives notice in writing to the Company that he resigns the office of Director;
- (c) dies, becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his creditors generally;
- (d) an order is made by any competent court or official on the grounds that he is or will be suffering from mental disorder or is otherwise incapable of managing his affairs, or his legal capacity is restricted according to the Applicable Laws:
- (e) having committed an offence as specified in the ROC statute of prevention of organizational crimes and subsequently adjudicated guilty by a final judgment, and the time elapsed after he has served the full term of such sentence is less than five (5) years;

- (f) having committed an offence involving fraud, breach of trust or misappropriation and subsequently sentenced to imprisonment of a term of more than one (1) year, and the time elapsed after he has served the full term of such sentence is less than two (2) years;
- (g) having been adjudicated guilty by a final judgment for misappropriating public funds during the time of his public service, and the time elapsed after he has served the full term of such sentence is less than two (2) years; or
- (h) having been dishonored for use of negotiable instruments, and the term of such sanction has not yet expired.

In the event that any of the foregoing events described in clauses (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), and (h) has occurred to a candidate for Directorship, such person shall be disqualified from being elected as a Director.

- 108. In case a Director has, in the course of performing his/her duties, committed any act resulting in material damages to the Company or in serious violation of applicable laws and regulations and/or these Articles, but not removed by a Supermajority Resolution of a general meeting, the Member(s) holding three (3) percentage or more of the total number of outstanding shares of the Company may, within thirty (30) days after that general meeting, to the extent permissible under Applicable Law, petition any competent court, which for these purposes and to the extent permitted by Applicable Laws, shall include the Taipei District Court, for the removal of such Director and such Director shall be removed upon the final judgment by such court. For clarification, if a relevant court has competent jurisdiction to adjudicate all of the foregoing matters in a single or a series of proceedings, then, for the purpose of this Article, final judgment shall be given by such competent court.
- 108-1. Without limiting the availability of applicable remedies under Cayman Islands law, and only to the extent ROC law permits, in case a Director has, in the course of performing his/her duties, committed any act resulting in material damages to the Company or in serious violation of Applicable Laws and regulations and/or Articles, the Member(s) who has been individually, or have been collectively, continuously holding 3% or more of the total number of the issued shares of the Company over one year may, in his/her/its name, launch a litigation against such Director and the Taipei District Court shall have the exclusive jurisdiction on such litigation.

108-2. For so long as the Shares are listed on the GTSM or the TSE, subject to the Applicable Public Company Rules (and the interpretation thereof), any Director who, during his/her term and in one or more transactions, accumulatively transfers more than fifty percent (50%) of the total Shares held by such Director at the time he/she is elected at a general meeting (the "Election Time"), shall be discharged or vacated from the office of Director automatically and no shareholders' approval shall be required. For so long as the Shares are listed on the GTSM or the TSE, subject to the Applicable Public Company Rules (and the interpretation thereof), if any person transfers, in one or more transactions, more than fifty percent (50%) of the Shares held by him/her at the Election Time either (i) during the period from the Election Time to the commencement date of his/her office as Director, or (ii) during the period when the Register of Member is closed for transfer of Shares prior to the general meeting at which such person is elected as a Director, his/her appointment or election as Director shall be null and void. For the purpose of calculation of the aggregate number of Shares transferred by the Director, any transfer of Shares by the Director prior to the adoption of this Article 108-2 shall be counted in. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Article 108-2 shall not apply retroactively and thus the Director who has transferred more than fifty percent (50%) of the total Shares held by such Director at the Election Time prior to the adoption of this Article 108-2 shall not be discharged or vacated from the office upon the adoption of this Article 108-2 and for the avoidance of doubt, any transfer of Shares by such Director after the adoption of this Article 108-2 shall be subject to this Article 108-2 and shall be aggregated with the Shares transferred prior to the adoption of this Article 108-2.

TENDER OFFER

- 109. Within seven (7) days after the receipt of the copy of a tender offer application form and relevant documents by the Company or its litigation or non litigation agent appointed pursuant to the Applicable Public Company Rules, the Board shall resolve to recommend to the Member whether to accept or object the tender offer and make a public announcement of the following:
- (a) the types and number of the Shares held by the Directors and the Members holding more than 10% of the outstanding Shares in their own names or in the names of other persons,
- (b) recommendations to the Members on the tender offer, which shall set forth the names of the Directors who abstain or object to the tender offer and the reason(s) therefore,

- (c) whether there is any material change in the financial condition of the Company after the submission of the latest financial report and an explanation of the change, if any; and
- (d) the types, numbers and amount of the Shares of the tender offeror or its affiliates held by the Directors and the Members holding more than 10% of the outstanding Shares in their own names or in the name of other persons.

SEAL

110. The Company may, if the Board so determine, have a Seal. The Seal shall only be used by the authority of the Board or of a committee of the Directors authorized by the Board in that behalf and every instrument to which the Seal has been affixed shall be signed by one person who shall be either a Director or the Secretary or secretary-treasurer or some person appointed by the Directors for the purpose:

PROVIDED THAT the Company may have for use in any place or places outside the Cayman Islands, a duplicate seal or seals each of which shall be a facsimile of the Common Seal of the Company and, if the Board so determine, with the addition on its face of the name of every place where it is to be used; and

PROVIDED FURTHER THAT a Director, Secretary or other officer or representative or attorney of the Company may without further authority of the Directors affix the Seal of the Company over his signature alone to any document of the Company required to be authenticated by him under Seal or to be filed with the Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands or elsewhere wheresoever.

OFFICERS

111. The Company may have a President, a Secretary or Secretary-Treasurer appointed by the Board who may also from time to time appoint such other officers as they consider necessary, all for such terms, at such remuneration and to perform such duties, and subject to such provisions as to disqualification and removal as the Directors from time to time prescribe. The officers, in the course of performing their duties to the Company, shall assume responsibilities identical to that of the Directors.

LITIGATION AND NON LITIGATION AGENT

111-1. So long as the Shares are listed on the GTSM, the Company shall, by a resolution of the Directors, appoint or remove a litigation and non-litigation agent pursuant to the Applicable Public Company Rules to act as the Company's responsible person in the ROC to handle matters stipulated in the ROC Securities and Exchange Act and the relevant rules and regulations thereto.

DIVIDENDS

- 112. All dividends declared shall be declared payable to the holders thereof registered as such on the record date specified by the Directors at the time such dividends are declared.
- Unless otherwise provided in the Applicable Public Company Rules, where the Company makes profits before tax for the annual financial year, the Company shall appropriate (i) no less than [5%] of such annual profits before tax as employee bonus (the "Employee Bonus"), which shall be distributed in accordance with the incentive programme approved pursuant to Article 9 and may be distributed to employees of the Company and/or the employees of its Subsidiaries and (ii) a maximum of 2% additional Directors' remunerations. Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, if the Company has accumulated losses of the previous years, the Company shall set aside the amount of such accumulated losses prior to the allocation of the Employee Bonus and the above additional Directors' remunerations. Subject always to the laws of Cayman Islands, the Employee Bonus may be distributed in the form of cash and/or shares, upon resolution by a majority votes at a meeting of the Board of Directors attended by two-thirds (2/3) or more of the Directors. For the avoidance of doubt, for the purpose of calculation of the above Employee Bonus and the additional Directors' remunerations, such "annual profits before tax" shall be without giving effect of the deduction and distribution of such Employee Bonus and the additional Directors' remunerations. The resolutions of Board of Directors regarding the distribution of the Employee Bonus in the preceding sentence shall be reported to the Members at the general meeting after such Board Subject to the Statute and this Article and except as resolutions are passed. otherwise provided by the rights attached to any Shares, the Company may declare dividends following the Board's recommendation in a distribution plan approved by the Board, with the sanction of Supermajority Resolution in the case of Article 24(e)(i), resolve to pay Dividends and other distributions on Shares in issue and authorise payment of the Dividends or other distributions out of the funds of the

Company lawfully available therefor. The Board shall provide the distribution plan according to the following requirements: If there are profits after the final settlement of account of a year (the "Annual Profits"), the Company (i) after its losses have been offset and at the time of allocating surplus profits, may first set aside 10% of the Annual Profits as statutory reserve until the statutory reserve amounts to the authorized capital, and (ii) may appropriate a portion of the Annual Profits as special reserve required by Applicable Public Company Rules or government authorities. Thereafter, having considered the financial, business and operational factors, the Board may propose and specify no less than 10% of any remaining of Annual Profits after the above (i) to (ii) plus, at the Board's sole discretion, a certain percent of accumulated retained earnings to be distributed as dividends by cash or by applying such sum in paying up in full unissued Shares for allotment and distribution credited as fully paid-up pro rata to the Members or any combination of both, or bonuses according to the Statute and Applicable Public Company Rules, among them, cash dividend shall not less than 10% of the total Dividend declared.

- 114. The Directors may, before resolving to pay any dividends, or distributions set aside such sums as they think proper as a reserve or reserves which shall at the discretion of the Directors, be applicable for any purpose of the Company and pending such application may, at the like discretion, be employed in the business of the Company.
- 115. No dividend or distribution shall be payable except out of the profits of the Company, realized or unrealized or out of the share premium account or as otherwise permitted by the Statute.
- 116. The Directors may deduct from any dividend or distribution payable to any Member all sums of money (if any) presently payable by him to the Company for any reason.
- 117. The Directors may declare that any dividend or distribution be paid wholly or partly by the distribution of specific assets and in particular of paid up shares, debentures, or debenture stock of any other company or in any one or more of such ways and where any difficulty arises in regard to such distribution, the Directors may settle the same as they think expedient and in particular may fix the value for distribution of such specific assets or any part thereof and may determine that cash payments shall be made to any Members upon the footing of the value so fixed in order to adjust the rights of all Members and may vest any such specific assets in trustees as may seem expedient to the Directors.

- 118. Any dividend, interest or other monies payable in cash in respect of shares may be paid by check or warrant sent through the post directed to the registered address of the holder or, in the case of joint holders, to the holder who is first named on the register of Members or to such person and to such address as such holder or joint holders may in writing direct. Every such check or warrant shall be made payable to the order of the person to whom it is sent. Any one of two or more joint holders may give effectual receipts for any dividends, bonuses, or other monies payable in respect of the share held by them as joint holders.
 - 119. No dividend shall bear interest against the Company.

REPURCHASE

120. Subject to the provisions of the Statute, the Company may purchase its own Shares (including any redeemable Shares).

In such manner as is referred to in Section 37(3)(d) of the Statute or any modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force, this Article authorises the purchase by the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Statue of such of its own Shares (including any redeemable Shares) as the Directors may from time to time determine and agree with the holder or holders of such Shares, in such manner and on such terms as the Directors may from time to time determine and agree, provided that the price at which such purchase is transacted must be equal to the lower of: (i) the original purchase price paid for the shares; or (ii) the fair market value of the shares at the time of the repurchase by the Company, as determined in good faith by the Directors.

The Company may make a payment in respect of the redemption or purchase of its own Shares in any manner permitted by the Statute, including out of capital.

Applicable Public Company Rules, the Company may, upon approval by a majority of the Directors at a meeting attended by two-thirds or more of the total number of the Directors, purchase its own Shares (including any redeemable Shares). In the event that the Company proposes to purchase any Share listed on the GTSM pursuant to this Article, the approval of the Board and the implementation thereof should be reported to the Members at the next general meeting in accordance with the Applicable Public Company Rules. Such reporting obligation shall apply even if the Company does not implement the proposal to purchase its Shares listed on the GTSM for any reason.

- 120-2 The Directors may, prior to the purchase or redemption of any Share under Article 120-1, determine that such Shares shall be held as Treasury Shares. Subject to the provision of the Statute and these Articles, the Directors may determine to cancel a Treasury Share or transfer a Treasury Share to the employees on such terms as they think proper (including, without limitation, for nil consideration).
- 120-3 Any proposal to transfer Treasury Shares to any employee of the Company and its Subsidiaries by the Company at a price below the average repurchase price paid by the Company shall be approved by a resolution passed by two-thirds or more of the Members present at the general meeting who represent a majority of the total outstanding Shares at the most recent general meeting. The notice of the general meeting shall specify the following matters, which may not be made by an ad hoc motion:
- (a) the basis and reasonableness of the determined transfer price, discount ratio and calculation;
 - (b) the number, purpose and reasonableness of the share transfer;
- (c) conditions for and volume of share to be purchased by relevant employees; and
 - (d) any effect on the shareholders' rights, including:
- (i)the amount which may be recorded as expenses and any dilution on earnings per Share; and
- (ii) any financial burden on the Company caused by such transfer of Treasury Shares to relevant employees at a price lower than the average repurchase price paid by the Company.

The aggregate number of Treasury Shares that may be transferred to relevant employees as approved by the Members at various general meetings shall not exceed five (5) percent of the total outstanding Shares, and the aggregate number of Treasury Shares that may be purchased by each employee shall not exceed 0.5 percent of the total outstanding Shares. The Company may impose restrictions on the transfer of such Shares by the employees for a period of no more than two (2) years.

120-4. The Company may repurchase the Restricted Shares issued to the employees if the vesting conditions are not met pursuant to the plan of Restricted Shares.

CAPITALIZATION

Subject to the Statute, the Board may, with the authority of a 121. Supermajority Resolution, at any time capitalize any sum standing to the credit of any of the Company's reserve accounts (including statutory reserve, Capital Reserve, and capital redemption reserve fund) or any sum standing to the credit or profit and loan amount or otherwise available for distribution and to appropriate such sum to Members in the proportions in which such sum would have been divisible amongst them had the same been a distribution of profits by way of dividend and to apply such sum on their behalf in paying up in full unissued shares (not being redeemable shares) for allotment and distribution credited as fully paid up to and amongst them in the proportion aforesaid. In such event the Directors shall do all acts and things required to give effect to such capitalization, with full power to the Directors to make such provisions as they think fit for the case of shares becoming distributable in fractions (including provisions whereby the benefit of fractional entitlements accrue to the Company rather than to the Members concerned). The Directors may authorize any person to enter on behalf of all of the Members interested into an agreement with the Company providing for such capitalization and matters incidental thereto and any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and binding on all such Members and the Company.

BOOKS OF ACCOUNT

- 122. The Board shall cause proper books of account to be kept with respect to:
- (a) all sums of money received and expended by the Company and the matters in respect of which the receipt or expenditure takes places;
 - (b) all sales and purchases of goods by the Company; and
 - (c) the assets and liabilities of the Company.

Proper books shall not be deemed to be kept if there are not kept such books of account as are necessary to give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs and to explain its transactions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

- 123. The Company shall set up an Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall comprise solely of Independent Directors and the number of committee members shall not be less than three (3). One of the Audit Committee members shall be appointed as the convener to convene meetings of the Audit Committee from time to time and at least one of Audit Committee members shall have accounting or financial expertise to the extent required by the Applicable Public Company Rules. A valid resolution of the Audit Committee requires the consent of one-half or more of all its members. Except for otherwise provided for in the Statute to the contrary, the rules and procedures of meeting of the Audit Committee shall be in accordance with these Articles and the Applicable Public Company Rules.
- 124. Any of the following matters of the Company shall require the consent of one-half or more of all Audit Committee members and be submitted to the Board for resolution:
 - (a) adoption of or amendment to an internal control system;
 - (b) assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control system;
- (c) adoption of or amendment to the handling procedures for financial or operational actions of material significance, such as acquisition or disposal of assets, derivatives trading, extension of monetary loans to others, or endorsements or guarantees for others;
 - (d) any matter relating to the personal interest of the Directors;
 - (e) a material asset or derivatives transaction;
 - (f) a material monetary loan, endorsement, or provision of guarantee;
- (g) the offering, issuance, or private placement of any equity-type securities;
- (h) the hiring or dismissal of an attesting certified public accountant, or the compensation given thereto;
- (i) the appointment or discharge of a financial, accounting, or internal auditing officer;
 - (j) approval of annual and semi-annual financial reports; and

(k) any other matter so determined by the Company from time to time or required by any competent authority overseeing the Company.

With the exception of item (j), any other matters above that has not been approved with the consent of one-half or more of all Audit Committee members may be undertaken upon the consent of two-thirds or more of the members of the Board, and the resolution of the Audit Committee shall be recorded in the minutes of the Board meeting.

NOTICES

- 125. Notices shall be in writing and may be given by the Company to any Member either personally or by sending it by post, cable, telex, telecopy or electronic mail to him or to his address as shown in the register of Members or such other address given for such purpose.
- 126. Where a notice is sent by post, service of the notice shall be deemed to be effected by properly addressing, pre-paying and posting a letter containing the notice, and to have been effected at the expiration of sixty (60) hours after the letter containing the same is posted as aforesaid. Where a notice is sent by cable, telex, telecopy or electronic mail, service of the notice shall be deemed to be effected by properly addressing, and sending such notice through a transmitting organization and to have been effected on the day the same is sent as aforesaid.
- 127. A notice may be given by the Company to the joint holders of record of a share by giving the notice to the joint holder first named on the register of Members in respect of the share.
- 128. A notice may be given by the Company to the person or persons which the Company has been advised are entitled to a share or shares in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a Member by sending it through the post as aforesaid in a pre-paid letter addressed to them by name, or by the title of representatives of the deceased, or trustee of the bankrupt, or by any like description at the address supplied for that purpose by the persons claiming to be so entitled, or at the option of the Company by giving the notice in any manner in which the same might have been given if the death or bankruptcy had not occurred.

- 129. Notice of every general meeting shall be given in any manner hereinbefore authorized to:
- (a) every person shown as a Member in the Register of Members as of the record date for such meeting except that in the case of joint holders the notice shall be sufficient if given to the joint holder first named in the register of Members; and
- (b) every person upon whom the ownership of a share devolves by reason of his being a legal personal representative or a trustee in bankruptcy of a Member of record where the Member of record but for his death or bankruptcy would be entitled to receive notice of the meeting.

WINDING UP

- 130. If the Company shall be wound up and the assets available for distribution amongst the Members as such shall be insufficient to repay the whole of the paid-up capital, such assets shall be distributed so that, as nearly as may be, the losses shall be borne by the Members in proportion to the capital paid up, or which ought to have been paid up, at the commencement of the winding up on the shares held by them respectively. And if in a winding up the assets available for distribution amongst the Members shall be more than sufficient to repay the whole of the capital paid up at the commencement of the winding up, the excess shall be distributed amongst the Members in proportion to the capital paid up at the commencement of the winding up on the shares held by them respectively. This Article is to be without prejudice to the rights of the holders of shares issued upon special terms and conditions.
- 131. If the Company shall be wound up the liquidator may, subject to the rights attached to any Shares and with the sanction of a Special Resolution of the Company and any other sanction required by the Statute, divide amongst the Members in proportion to the number of the Shares held by them in kind the whole or any part of the assets of the Company (whether such assets shall consist of property of the same kind or not) and may for that purpose value any assets and determine how the division shall be carried out as between the Members or different classes of Members. The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the Members as the liquidator, with the like sanction, shall think fit, but so that no Member shall be compelled to accept any asset upon which there is a liability.

INDEMNITY

Every Director and officer of the Company, together with every former 132. Director and former officer of the Company (each an "Indemnified Person") shall be indemnified to the extent permitted by Applicable Laws and held harmless by the Company against all claims, actions, proceedings, costs, charges, expenses (including but not limited to legal expense), losses, damages, or liabilities incurred or sustained by such Indemnified Person, whatsoever which they or any of them may incur as a result of any act or omission to act in carrying out their function except to the extent that such claims, actions, proceedings, costs, charges, expenses (including but not limited to legal expense), losses, damages, or liabilities are found in a judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction that is final and non-appealable to have resulted from such Indemnified Person's own willful default or actual fraud. The Company is allowed to enter into indemnification contract or contract of similar nature with the aforementioned Indemnified Person and to purchase and to maintain insurance for the benefit of such Indemnified Person against any liability which, by virtue of any rule of law, would otherwise attach to such Indemnified Person in respect to of any negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust of which such Indemnified Person may be guilty in relation to the Company. Notwithstanding anything provided herein, no such Indemnified Person shall be answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other Indemnified Person or for joining in any receipt for the sake of conformity or for the solvency or honesty of any banker or other persons with whom any monies or effects belonging to the Company may be lodged or deposited for safe custody or for any insufficiency of any security upon which any monies of the Company may be invested or for any other loss or damage due to any such cause as aforesaid or which may happen in or about the execution of his office except the same shall happen through the willful default or actual fraud of such Indemnified Person.

FISCAL YEAR

133. Unless the Directors otherwise prescribe, the financial year of the Company shall end on December 31 in each year.

AMENDMENTS OF ARTICLES

134. Subject to the Statute, the Company may at any time and from time to time by Special Resolution alter or amend these Articles in whole or in part.

TRANSFER BY WAY OF CONTINUATION

135. If the Company is exempted as defined in the Statute, it shall, subject to the provisions of the Statute and with the approval of a Special Resolution, have the power to register by way of continuation as a body corporate under the laws of any jurisdiction outside the Cayman Islands and to be deregistered in the Cayman Islands.

Attachment III

Parade Technologies, Ltd. 2015 Business Report

Dear Shareholders,

Year 2015 was a substantial growth year for Parade. We achieved record revenue of US\$225.93 million, or NT\$7.2 billion in 2015, which represented an increase of 10.00% year-over-year growth as compared to 2014. Leveraging our leading technology and superior product design capability, combined with our close collaboration with Tier-1 OEM customers and chip set vendors, Parade has successfully sustained our leadership position in the markets we serve.

During the past year, Parade made a significant strategic investment by acquiring the TrueTouch® Mobile touchscreen business from Cypress Semiconductor. This strategic acquisition enables Parade to market TrueTouch solutions to our customers. More importanly, the acquisition will allow Parade to integrate the touch screen controller technology with company's proprietary display driver technology to offer unique and highly integrated solutions to the rapidly growing smartphone, tablet, and notebook markets.

Along with the TrueTouch design team and sales and marketing infrastructure, the acquisition brought more than 150 patents, including pending applications, into the Parade IP portfolio, and secured IP licenses for additional 150 patents. Parade's newly expanded IP portfolio will drive the development of innovative integrated devices that will reduce unit cost and simplify design cycles, time-to-market, and supply chain management for customers in the mobile display market. The company estimates that Parade's total serviceable market reaches \$5.5 billion as a result of this strategic acquisition.

In 2015, Parade continues to strengthen the leading positions in high-speed market segment. The USB Type-C Connector with DP Alt Mode—first introduced in 2014—achieved

broad market acceptance in 2015. The company continued to position itself for growth through aggressive new product introductions. Parade expanded its portfolio of devices addressing high-speed market in 2015 with the introduction of data switches (PS8740), redrivers (PS8742), and integrated switch-redriver-power controllers (PS 8750 & PS 8751) for the 'USB Type-C' market.

Parade leveraged its market leading position and extensive industry knowledge in embedded DisplayPort area to introduce two TCON devices (DP691 and DP693) for eDP version 1.4b, the latest update to the eDP standard. Working closely with Tier-1 OEM customers, Parade also developed customized eDP solutions to solve unique technical challenges faced by leading global brands for advanced display solutions, such as AMOLED displays. Parade continues to commit resources to support the development of DisplayPort standards through the company's participation in VESA (Video Electronics Standards Association), with Parade personnel serving as key contributors on VESA technical committees.

Parade's LCD driver based on Scalable Intra Panel Interface (SIPI) for use within LCD display panels—first introduced in 2014—achieved mass-market production in 2015. In addition, SIPI driver technologies and products continue winning the adoptions in the marketplace where LCD display panels demand high-speed bandwidth. For the high-speed converter area, Parade introduced new DP-to-HDMI 2.0a video protocol converters (PS175 & PS176). Finally, exploiting its acquisition of TrueTouch, Parade announced two touch screen controller families in 2015, one targeted at tablet applications (TT41X), and one targeted at smartphones (TT42X).

Parade's consolidated net income in 2015, including the acquisition related expense of Cypress' TrueTouch business was US\$36.03 million (NT\$1.14 billion), a decrease of 10.95% from US\$40.47 million (NT\$1.23 billion) in year 2014. Earnings per diluted share in 2015

were US\$0.47 (NT\$15.00), a decrease of 11.32% from US\$0.53 (NT\$16.15) in 2014. Gross

profit margin was 40.35% as compared to 41.28% in 2014, while operating profit margin was

16.87% down from 21.25% of the prior year.

Parade believes our employees and intellectual property are the most important assets of

the company. We are committed to recruiting and investing in the highest quality research &

development (R&D) staff, in order to expand our technology capabilities and portfolios. As of

December 31, 2015, Parade has a total of 393 employees, up 100 from 2014. Out of 393

employees, 245 were engaged in research, development and related engineering. We hold 112

granted patents and 146 patent applications pending by year-end of 2015.

Looking forward, we believe we will continue to benefit from the increasing demand for

bandwidth to support innovative displays, higher speed data transmission, and lower power

consumption. Our newly expanded IP portfolio enables Parade to expand our strategic focus to

combine touch screen and display technologies, satisfying the increasing consumer and

industrial market demand for advanced integrated solutions. With our leading position in eDP

TCON technologies and broad adoption by global tier-1 customers, we believe Parade is well

positioned to generate outstanding results for our shareholders.

We appreciate the solid support from all of our shareholders!

Jack Zhao

Chairman and CEO

April 27, 2016

~65~

Audit Committee's Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the Company's 2015 Business Report, 2015 consolidated Financial Statements and proposal for allocation of profits. The CPA firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers was retained to audit Parade's consolidated Financial Statements and has issued an audit report relating to the consolidated Financial Statements. The Business Report, consolidated Financial Statements and profit allocation proposal have been reviewed and determined to be correct and accurate by the Audit Committee members of Parade Technologies, Ltd. According to Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Law, we hereby submit this report.

Parade Technologies, Limited.

Chairman of the Audit Committee: Norman Shen



April 27, 2016

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Parade Technologies, Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Parade Technologies, Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the "Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants" and generally accepted auditing standards in the Republic of China. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Parade Technologies, Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and their consolidated financial performance and their consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with the "Rules Governing the Preparation of Financial Statements by Securities Issuers", International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan

March 9, 2016

The accompanies concelled disposed frame at statements are not intended to present the financial position and position and

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and report of independent accountants are not intended for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, and their applications in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.

PARADE TECHNOLOGIES, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014 (EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

			 December 31, 2015	5	December 31, 2014					
ASSETS Current assets		Notes	 Amount	<u>%</u>						
1100	Cash and cash equivalents	6(1)	\$ 2,887,751	35	\$	4,600,434	70			
1125	Available-for-sale financial asset	S								
	- current		-	-		34,365	-			
1170	Accounts receivable, net	6(2)	1,252,871	15		1,084,808	17			
130X	Inventories, net	6(3)(14)	613,776	8		431,792	7			
1470	Other current assets		 264,159	3		194,387	3			
11XX	Total current assets		 5,018,557	61		6,345,786	97			
]	Non-current assets									
1600	Property, plant and equipment, no	et 6(4)(14)	158,494	2		121,864	2			
1780	Intangible assets	6(5)(14)	2,989,576	36		6,228	-			
1840	Deferred income tax assets	6(17)	38,893	1		3,880	-			
1900	Other non-current assets		 36,223			47,551	1			
15XX	Total non-current assets		 3,223,186	39		179,523	3			
1XXX	TOTAL ASSETS		\$ 8,241,743	100	\$	6,525,309	100			

(Continued)

PARADE TECHNOLOGIES, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014 (EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

	LIABILITIES AND EQUITY	Notes		December 31, 2015 Amount	%	 ecember 31, 2014 Amount	<u>%</u>
	Current liabilities						
2170	Accounts payable		\$	701,881	9	\$ 341,624	5
2200	Other payables	6(6)		397,268	5	352,228	5
2230	Current income tax liabilities	6(17)		411,561	5	291,588	5
2300	Other current liabilities			269,787	3	 118,364	2
21XX	Total current liabilities			1,780,497	22	 1,103,804	17
2XXX	Total liabilities			1,780,497	22	 1,103,804	17
	Equity attributable to owners of						
	the Company						
	Share capital	6(10)					
3110	Ordinary shares			760,751	9	754,604	12
	Capital reserves	6(11)					
3200	Capital reserves			1,804,206	23	1,651,739	26
	Retained earnings	6(12)					
3310	Legal reserve			364,246	4	241,672	4
3320	Special reserve			8,324	-	78,218	1
3350	Unappropriated earnings			3,291,004	40	2,578,037	39
	Other equity						
3400	Other equity			281,120	3	117,235	1
3500	Treasury shares	6(10)	(48,405) (1)	 	
31XX	Equity attributable to owners	s					
	of the Company			6,461,246	78	 5,421,505	83
3XXX	Total equity			6,461,246	78	 5,421,505	83
	Significant contingent liabilities	9					
	and unrecognized contract						
	commitments						
	Significant events after the	11					
	balance sheet date						
3X2X	TOTAL LIABILITIES AND						
	EQUITY		\$	8,241,743	100	\$ 6,525,309	100

PARADE TECHNOLOGIES, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014 (EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT FOR EARNINGS PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

			2015				2014				
		Notes		Amount	%		Amount		%		
4000	Revenue		\$	7,189,471	100	\$	6,225,291		100		
5000	Cost of goods sold	6(3)(15)(16)	(4,289,253)	(60)	(3,656,094)	(59)		
5900	Gross profit			2,900,218	40		2,569,197		41		
	Operating expenses	6(15)(16)(18) and 7		_							
6100	Sales and marketing expenses		(400,942)	(5)	(298,916)	(5)		
6200	General and administrative										
	expenses		(258,008)	(4)	(215,900)	(3)		
6300	Research and development										
	expenses		(1,031,362)	(14)	(732,331)	(12)		
6000	Total operating expenses		(1,690,312)	(23)	(1,247,147)	(20)		
6900	Operating income			1,209,906	17		1,322,050	_	21		
	Non-operating income and										
	expenses										
7010	Other income			3,643	-		27,046		1		
7020	Other gains and losses			25,327			2,202				
7000	Total non-operating income										
	and expenses			28,970			29,248		1		
7900	Income before income tax			1,238,876	17		1,351,298		22		
7950	Income tax expense	6(17)	(94,530)	(1)	(125,555)	(2)		
8000	Net income for the year from										
	continuing operations			1,144,346	16		1,225,743		20		
	Other comprehensive income										
	Components of other										
	comprehensive income that										
	will be reclassified to profit or										
	loss										
8361	Currency translation										
	differences of foreign										
	operations			206,425	3		289,534	_	4		
8360	Components of other										
	comprehensive income that										
	will be reclassified to profit										
	or loss			206,425	3		289,534	_	4		
8500	Total comprehensive income for				4.0						
	the year		\$	1,350,771	19	\$	1,515,277	_	24		
	Net income attributable to:										
8610	Owners of the Company		\$	1,144,346	16	\$	1,225,743	_	20		
	Comprehensive income										
	attributable to:										
8710	Owners of the Company		\$	1,350,771	19	\$	1,515,277	_	24		
9750	Basic earnings per share from	6(13)									
	continuing operations		\$		15.30	\$			16.48		
9850	Diluted earnings per share	6(13)									
	from continuing operations		\$		15.00	\$			16.15		

PARADE TECHNOLOGIES, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014 (EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

		Equity attributable to owners of the parent																
			Capital Reserves						Other Equity									
	<u>Notes</u>		rdinary shares	Paid-in capital in excess of ordinary shares	Capital reserve from employee stock options	Capital reserve from restricte d stocks	Capital reserve - others	Legal reserve	Special reserve	Una	appropriated earnings	Currer transla n differe s of forei operati	tio ence gn		earned ensation	Treasury shares		<u>Total</u>
<u>Year 2014</u>																		
Balance at January 1, 2014		\$	747,257	\$ 1,263,837	\$ 64,037	\$ 82,812	\$ 31,423	\$ 173,757	\$ 93,524	\$	1,615,443	(\$	143)	(\$	77,866)	\$ -	\$	3,993,781
Share-based compensation cost	6(9)		-	-	45,093	-	-	-	-		-		-		34,747	-		79,840
Exercise of employee stock options	6(9)(10)		4,210	40,732	(7,034)	-	-	-	-		-		-		-	-		37,908
Issuance of restricted stocks			3,485	-	-	130,687	-	-	-		-		-	(134,172)	-		-
Cancellation of share-based compensation		(348)	-	-	(5,175)	-	-	-		187		-		5,435	-		99
Tax deduction exceeds cumulative share-based payment expenses			-	-	-	-	5,327	-	-		-		_		-	-		5,327
Purchase of treasury shares			-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-		_		-	(41,920)	(41,920)
Treasury shares reissued to employees	6(10)		-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-		_		-	41,920		41,920
Earnings appropriation																		
Legal reserve			-	-	-	-	-	67,915	-	(67,915)		-		-	-		-
Special reserve			-	-	-	-	-	-	(15,306)		15,306		-		-	-		-
Cash dividends			-	-	-	-	-	-	-	(210,727)		_		-	_	(210,727)
Net income for 2014			-	-	-	-	-	-	-		1,225,743		_		-	_		1,225,743
Other comprehensive income for 2014			-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	289,	534		-	_		289,534
Balance at December 31, 2014		\$	754,604	\$ 1,304,569	\$ 102,096	\$ 208,324	\$ 36,750	\$ 241,672	\$ 78,218	\$	2,578,037	\$ 289,0	091	(\$	171,856)	\$ -	\$	5,421,505
Year 2015					<u> </u>					_				`		·	_	
Balance at January 1, 2015		\$	754,604	\$ 1,304,569	\$ 102,096	\$ 208,324	\$ 36,750	\$ 241,672	\$ 78,218	\$	2,578,037	\$ 289,0	091	(\$	171,856)	\$ -	\$	5,421,505
Share-based compensation cost	6(9)	Ψ	-	- 1,501,505	36,179	- 200,52	-	ψ 2.11,0,2 -	· /0,210	Ψ	2,5 / 0,05 /	Ψ 20>,	-	(4	67,191	_	Ψ	103,370
Exercise of employee stock options	6(9)(10)		2,332	15,468	(4,749)	_	_	_	_		_		_		-	_		13,051
Issuance of restricted stocks	*(*)(**)		4,000		-	118,600	_	_	_		_		_	(122,600)	_		-
Cancellation of share-based compensation	6(9)	(185)	_	_	(12,704)	_	_	_		112		_	,	12,869	_		92
Tax deduction exceeds cumulative share-based payment expenses		,	-	_	_		(327)	_	-				_		,	_	(327)
Purchase of treasury shares	6(10)		_	_	_	_	-	-	_		_		_		_	(125,902)	ì	125,902)
Treasury shares reissued to employees	6(10)		_	_	_	_	_	_	_		_		_		_	77,497	`	77,497
Earnings appropriation	*(-*)															,		,
Legal reserve			_	_	_	_	_	122,574	_	(122,574)		_		_	_		_
Special reserve			_	-	-	_	_		(69,894)	`	69,894		_		_	_		_
Cash dividends			_	-	-	_	_	_	-	(378,811)		_		_	_	(378,811)
Net income for 2015			_	-	-	_	_	_	_	`	1,144,346		_		_	_	`	1,144,346
Other comprehensive income for 2015			-	-	-	_	_	_	_		-	206,4	125		_	_		206,425
Balance at December 31, 2015		\$	760,751	\$ 1,320,037	\$ 133,526	\$ 314,220	\$ 36,423	\$ 364,246	\$ 8,324	\$	3,291,004	\$ 495,	_	(\$	214,396)	(\$ 48,405)	\$	6,461,246

PARADE TECHNOLOGIES, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014 (EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

	Notes		2015		2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES					
Income before income tax for the year		\$	1,238,876	\$	1,351,298
Adjustments to reconcile income before income tax to net cash		Ф	1,236,670	φ	1,331,298
provided by operating activities					
Income and expenses having no effect on cash flows					
Depreciation	6(4)(15)		61,176		39,678
Amortization	6(5)(15)		79,173		2,948
Loss on disposal of equipment	0(3)(13)		1,479		2,251
Share-based compensation cost	6(9)(16)		103,370		79,840
Interest income	0(9)(10)	(1,718)	(923)
Changes in assets/liabilities relating to operating activities		(1,710)	(923)
Net changes in assets relating to operating activities					
Accounts receivable		(127,619)		1,587
Inventories		(165,886)	(188,428)
Other current assets		(60,095)		108,959)
Other current assets Other non-current assets		(19,137	(18,449
Net changes in liabilities relating to operating activities			19,137		10,449
Accounts payable			347,521	(174,610)
Other payables			29,167	(82,545
Other current liabilities			147,011		43,176
Cash provided by operations		-	1,671,592	-	1,148,852
Interest received			1,071,392		958
		((
Income tax paid		(24,967) 1,648,482	(3,401) 1,146,409
Net cash provided by operating activities		-	1,046,462	-	1,140,409
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES					
Decrease (increase) in available-for-sale financial assets - current			33,507	(207)
Acquisition of equipment	6(4)(14)	(75,898)	(66,832)
Proceeds from disposal of equipment			-		6
Acquisition of intangible assets	6(5)(14)	(73,099)	(776)
Increase in refundable deposits		(6,036)	(842)
Acquisition of business combinations	6(14)	(3,168,405)		
Net cash used in investing activities		(3,289,931)	(68,651)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES					
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options			13,051		37,908
Purchase of treasury shares	6(10)	(125,902)	(41,920)
Treasury shares reissued to employees	6(10)		77,497		41,920
Cash dividends paid		(378,811)	(210,727)
Cash dividend recovered from cancellation of share-based			2,2,222,		,
compensation			92		99
Net cash used in financing activities		(414,073)	(172,720)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents		`	342,839	`	236,315
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents		(1,712,683)		1,141,353
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year		,	4,600,434		3,459,081
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year		\$	2,887,751	\$	4,600,434
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		-	, , ,	-	, - , - ,



Attachment VI

	Parade Technologies., L				
	盈餘分配表 (Proposal of Profit l	Distribution)			
	民國一百零四年十二月三十一日 (De	ecember 31, 2015)			
項目 (Description)		NT\$		U S\$	
		小計 (Subtotal)	合計 (Total)	小計 (Subtotal)	合計 (Total)
民國一百零四年度稅後淨利	FY 2015 Net Income	1,144,345,897	1,144,345,897	36,033,185	36,033,185
滅:	subtract:				
提列10%法定盈餘公積	10% legal reserve	114,434,590		3,603,319	
提列特別盈餘公積	Special reserve	-		-	
民國一百零四年度可供分配盈餘	Retained Earnings in 2015 Available for Distribution		1,029,911,307		32,429,867
טל:	Plus:				
以前年度未分配盈餘	Unappropriated Retained Earnings of Previous Years	2,146,350,573		72,043,276	
至民國一百零四年底可分配盈餘	Retained Earnings Available for Distribution as of 12/31/2015		3,176,261,880		104,473,143
分配項目:	Distribution Items:				
普通股股東紅利-現金(每股 5.02元)	- Cash dividends to ordinary shareholders (NT\$5.02 per share)	381,896,776		11,572,630	
普通股股東紅利-股票(每股 0元)	- Stock dividends to ordinary shareholders (NT\$0 per share)	-		-	
分配項目合計	Subtotal	381,896,776		11,572,630	
期末未分配盈餘	Unappropriated Retained Earnings		2,794,365,104		92,900,513
Ex change rate: US\$1.00=NT\$33.00					

Chairman: Ji Zhao Ii Zha

CEO: Ji Zhao

Sr. VP of Finance: Judy Wang

Parade Technologies, Ltd. 2016 Employee Restricted Stock Awards Plan (English Version is for reference only)

I. Purpose

To attract and retain professional personnel needed by the Company, to motivate employees and enhance their centripetal force so as to jointly create the Company's and shareholders' interests, the Company hereby establishes this Employee Restricted Stock Awards Plan (this "**Plan**").

II. Issuance Period

Within one year from the date of the shareholders resolution, the Company may, depending on its actual need, register with the competent authority single tranche or multiple tranche of the restricted shares for the employees. For the number of shares effectively registered, within one year starting from the date when the effective notice issued by the competent authority is received, the Company may issue the shares all at once or by tranches. The chairman is authorized to determine the actual issuance date.

III. The eligibility of employees

- 1. The eligible employees are limited to the employees of the Company or of the subsidiary wholly owned by the Company who serve as the full-time employees before the restricted stocks awards for the employee (the "**RSA**") are granted. For the purpose of this plan, grant means granting without consideration.
- 2. The chairman shall propose and submit the list of grantee employees and the number of RSAs to be granted to the board of directors of the Company for the approval, in the case of granting the RSA to an employee who serves as directors and/or officers, to the compensation committee of the Company for review and recommendation and then to the board of directors of the Company for final approval. The actual employees and the number of RSA to be granted will be decided according to relevant laws and regulations and within the limitation of amount thereof, considering seniority, job level, work performance, overall contribution, special achievement, and other factors necessary for management, etc., and considering the Company's operational needs and development strategy.
- 3. For each employee, the total number of RSAs granted to plus the total number of shares issued and issuable upon exercise by such employee of the Special Employee Stock Option of which the term has yet been

expired shall not exceed 0.3% of the total issued and outstanding shares of the Company; and the sum of the number of RSAs granted to plus the total number of shares issued and issuable upon exercise by such employee of all employee stock option of which the term has yet been expired shall not exceed 1% of the total issued and outstanding shares of the Company. For purpose of this Plan, the Special Employee Stock Option shall mean the employee stock option of which the exercise price is lower than the market price.

IV. Total number of RSAs

The total number of restricted shares to be issued under this Plan is 1,150,000 ordinary shares, at the par value of NT\$10.

V. Terms and conditions of the issuance

1. Issue price

Each RSA will be issued without consideration.

2. Vesting conditions

(1) Non-management employees

The RSAs granted to non-management employees will be vested at the equal rate of 25% per year over four (4) years from the date the RSAs are granted. Each 25% will be vested on the anniversary of the date the RSAs are granted to the grantee non-management employee provided that such employee continuously serves the Company to each corresponding anniversary.

(2) Management employees

The RSAs granted to management employees will be vested at the equal rate of 25% per year over four (4) years from May 1, 2016. Each 25% will be vested on the anniversary of May 1, 2016 (i.e. April 30 of each year of 2017 to 2020) to the grantee management employee provided that such employee continuously serves the Company to each corresponding anniversary.

The chairman shall propose and submit the respective list of non-management employee and management employees to the board of directors of the Company for the approval and, in the case of any employee who serves as director and/or officer, to the compensation committee of the Company for review and recommendation and then to the board of directors of the Company for final approval.

3. The class of shares to be issued:

The Company's ordinary share. Except for restrictions provided under Section 4 hereof, other rights and obligations of the RSAs shall be the same as the issued and outstanding ordinary shares of the Company.

- 4. Restrictions before the vesting conditions are fully satisfied
 - (1) The grantee employee shall not sell, transfer, make gift of, create other rights or encumbrances on the RSAs, or otherwise dispose of the RSAs in any other manner.
 - (2) All the proposal rights, motion rights, speech rights, voting rights and any other shareholder rights shall be exercised by the trustee or the custodian (as applicable).
 - (3) The restrictions (including but not limited to transfer restrictions and vesting conditions) applicable to any and all unvested RSAs (and any share derived from such RSAs for whatever reason, share dividend, retained earning capitalization, including recapitalization, reserve capitalization and any cash distributed based on such RSAs for whatever reason, including cash dividend and distribution of capital reserve in the form of cash) shall equally apply to any share derived, directly or indirectly, from and cash distributed based on such unvested RSAs for whatever reason, including share dividend, retained earning capitalization, reserve capitalization, recapitalization, cash dividend and distribution of capital reserve in the form of cash, and any interests (collectively, the "Restricted Share and Cash Distribution"). For the avoidance of doubt, for the purpose of this Plan, the unvested RSAs shall include all the corresponding Restricted Share and Cash Distribution, which are subject to the same restrictions and thus unvested.
 - (4) The other rights and obligations of the RSAs shall be the same as the issued and outstanding ordinary shares of the Company.
- 5. Effect in the event of any non-satisfication of vesting conditions, early termination of the employment, or inheritance, etc.
 - (1) Unless otherwise provided under clause (2) hereunder, if the vesting conditions are not fully satisfied, as to the RSAs that would have been vested were the conditions fully satisfied, the Company may redeem such RSAs at no consideration, and then shall cancel such RSAs.

- (2) In the event the employee's employment is terminated or inheritance occurs, etc., all the rights attached to the unvested RSAs will be forfeited on the date when the termination of employment or inheritance takes effect, and the Company may redeem such unvested RSAs at no consideration, and then shall cancel such RSAs.
- (a) Retirement or job-leaving (including voluntary resignation, lay off or fire for any reason)

All the rights attached to the unvested RSAs will be forfeited on the date when the retirement or termination of employment (including voluntary resignation, laid off or fire for any reason) takes effect, and the Company may redeem all such RSAs at no consideration, and then shall cancel such RSAs.

(b) Death

All the rights attached to the unvested RSAs will be forfeited upon the date when the employee deceases, and the Company may redeem all such RSAs at no consideration, and then shall cancel such RSAs.

- (c) Occupational accidents
- (i) If the grantee employee cannot continue his/her employment with the Company as a result of occupational accidents, all the RSAs that have been granted will be vested on the date when the termination of employment takes effect, unless otherwise provided by laws or regulations.
- (ii) If the grantee employee passes away as a result of occupational accidents, all the RSAs that have been granted will be vested to his/her inheritor(s), unless otherwise provided by laws or regulations.

(d) Job transfer

If any grantee employee applies for transfer to the Company's affiliated enterprises or other companies, clause (a) hereunder will apply to the unvested RSAs. However, if any grantee employee is transferred to the Company's affiliated enterprises or other companies due to the Company's operational needs, the RSAs that have been granted to him/her will not be affected by the job transfer.

(e) Leave of absence without pay

If any grantee employee takes leave of absence without pay under the approval of the Company, the rights attached to the unvested RSAs will resume on the date of his/her reinstatement. However, the time period set forth in the vesting conditions of paragraph 2 shall defer for a period corresponding to the time period of the leave of absence.

(f) Termination of employment due to other causes

In the event of termination or adjustment of employment not set forth above, the chairman or the board of directors may, to the extend permitted by applicable laws and regulation, determine to change or revoke the granted rights.

VI. Procedure of Granting

The chairman is authorized to determine the record date for granting and the record date for share issue for each tranche of issuance.

VII. Acceleration of vesting

If the shareholders' meeting of the Company resolves to have the Company dissolved, merged into other company or become one hundred percent subsidiary of other company by means of share exchange (or other merger and acquisition methods), whether the vesting conditions are fully satisfied or not, one hundred percent of the RSAs granted to the employee shall become vested from the date when the resolution has been made by the shareholders' meeting.

VIII. Confidentiality and effect of breaching

- 1. After the employee has been granted the restricted shares, the employee shall comply with the confidentiality clause and shall not inquire about or disclose the relevant information to other people (including but not limited to the number of the RSAs granted to such employees and the relevant rights); in the event of any breach thereof, and the Company may redeem all or portion such RSAs at no consideration, and then shall cancel such RSAs.
- After the RSAs are granted to the employee, if the employee materially breaches the labor contract, employment agreement, work rules or employee handbook, or other the Company's material rules announced after this Plan has been effective, etc., and the Company may redeem all or portion such RSAs at no consideration and then shall cancel such RSAs.

IX. Miscellaneous

- 1. In the case that the grantee employee is an ROC citizen, such employee shall, immediately after the Company issues the RSAs to such employee, trust such RSAs to the trustee designated by the Company in accordance with the Company's instruction and, unless otherwise provided hereunder, shall be continuously trusted till the full satisfaction of the vesting conditions. Any and all the Restricted Share and Cash Distribution derived from the unvested RSAs shall also be put in the trust. In the case that the grantee employee is non-ROC citizen, such employee shall put the RSA with a custodian bank for custody.
- 2. This plan shall be approved by the board of directors and then submitted to the shareholders' meeting for approval and shall become effective after registration with the competent authority. If any amendment is necessary due to any change of laws or regulations, any demand by the competent authority or any requirement of the circumstance, the chairman is authorized to make necessary amendment and submit such proposed amendment to the board of directors for approval by a majority of the Directors at a meeting attended by two-thirds or more of the total number of the Directors before the issuance of RSA hereunder; provided, however, that any amendment to the total number of RSAs, the substantial change in the terms and conditions of the issuance, such amendment shall be submitted to the shareholders' meeting.
- 3. Any other matters not set forth in this Plan shall be dealt with in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Attachment VIII

Parade Technologies, Ltd.

Share Repurchase and Employee Incentive Plan

Date: September 2, 2015

Article 1. In order to motivate employees and enhance their centripetal force, the Company hereby establishes this Share Repurchase and Employee Incentive Plan (this "Plan") pursuant to subparagraph 1 of paragraph 1 of Article 28-2 of Securities and Exchange Act, Regulations Governing Share Repurchase by Exchange-Listed and OTC-Listed Companies by Financial Supervisory Commission and other related statutes, regulations and orders. Unless otherwise provided in the applicable laws, the repurchase of the shares and the subsequent transfer thereof to the employees shall be conducted pursuant to this Plan.

(Class, Substance and Limitation Of Rights Of Shares)

Article 2. The shares (the "**Shares**") to be transferred to the employees are ordinary shares.

Unless provided otherwise in the Applicable Laws or this Plan, Shares bear the same rights and obligations as other Company's outstanding ordinary shares.

(Transfer Period)

Article 3. The Company may transfer the Shares, in whole or in tranches, to the employees within 3 years commencing from the date of repurchase in accordance with this Plan.

(Qualifications of The Transferee)

Article 4. The employees (i) (x) of the Company or (y) of any domestic or foreign company in which the Company's more than 50% of its total number of voting shares are directly or indirectly held by the Company and (ii) (x) are employed more than one year from the record date of subscription, or (y) have special achievements and are approved by the Board of Directors (individually and collectively referred to as the "Qualified Employees") are eligible to subscribe the Shares up to the number

provided in Article 5 of this Plan.

(Procedure for Transfer)

Article 5. Number of shares to be subscribed by Qualified Employees (Note: The Board of Directors shall decide the number of Shares to be subscribed by considering factors, such as the Qualified Employees' title, seniority or special achievements to the Company, together with the number of treasury shares held by the Company as of the record date of subscription and the maximum number of Shares subscribable that can be subscribed by an individual employee, etc):

Article 6. Procedure for Transfer:

- The Company shall make announcement and report and repurchase the Shares within the execution period in accordance with the resolution of Board of Directors,
- (2) According to this Plan, the Board of Directors shall decide and announce the record date of subscription, the criteria for determining the number of Shares to be subscribed, the subscription and payment period, the rights and limitations of Shares, etc..
- (3) The Company shall calculate the number of Shares actually subscribed and paid for. Then the Company shall transfer those Shares and register such transfer.

(Transfer Price per Share)

Article 7. The transfer price of the Shares equals to the average of the actual share repurchase price. If the number of the Company's issued ordinary shares increases or decreases prior to transfer, that transfer price shall be adjusted proportionately. (Note: If, according to the Company's charter, the transfer price is lower than the average actual share repurchase price, the transfer price shall be approved, prior to transfer, by a resolution of a shareholder meeting adopted by a majority of the

shareholders present who represent two-thirds or more of the total number of its outstanding shares. The notice to convene that shareholder meeting of shareholders should itemize the matters listed in section 10-1 of the Regulations Governing Share Repurchase by Exchange-Listed and OTC-Listed Companies.)

Adjustment formula of the transfer price:

adjusted Exercise Price = (Exercise Price before adjustment \times number of issued and outstanding Shares + subscription price per new Share \times number of new Shares) / (number of issued and outstanding Shares + number of new Shares)

(Rights and Obligations of Shares After Transfer)

Article 8. After Shares have been transferred to Qualified Employees and such transfer has been registered, unless provided otherwise, the rights and obligations shall be identical with those originally attached to those shares.

(Other Matters With Respect To The Rights And Obligations Between The Company And Qualified Employees)

Article 9. (Note: Subject to Securities and Exchange Act, Company Act and other Applicable

Laws, the Company may consider to reach an agreement for matters with

respect to the rights and obligations between the Company and Qualified

Employee)

(Miscellaneous)

- Article 10. This Plan shall take affect after being affirmatively resolved by the Board of Directors and may be amended by a resolution of the Board of Directors.
- Article 11. The enactment and any amendment of this Plan shall be reported to the shareholder meeting.

Attachment IX

LIST OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR CANDIDATES

Name	Hoding Shares (Note)	Education, Professional Qualifications & Recognitions	Major Past Positions	Current Positions
Dennis Lynn Segers	126,004	BSEE of Texas A&M University	CEO of Tabula, Inc. CEO of Matrix Semiconductor Senior VP of Xilinx, Inc.	Chairman of the Board of Xilinx, Inc.
Jen-Lin (Norman) Shen	0	Master of Economics at National Chung Hsin University	CFO of Motech Industries, Inc. Director, CFO&SVP of Systex Corporation	Independent Director of Pilot Electonics Corporation Limited. Independent Director of Coland Holdings Limited.
Charlie Xiaoli Huang	0	PhD of Carnegie Mellon University	Executive Vice President and General Manager of System & Verification Group of Cadence Design Systems, Inc. CEO of CadMOS Design Technology	General Manager of OpenPOWER China, of IBM

Note: Shares as of April 23, 2016

Rules for Election of Directors

[Adopted by Ordinary Resolution passed on October 28, 2010]

Article 1

Unless otherwise provided in relevant laws and regulations or the Memorandum and Articles of Association of this Company, the directors of this Company shall be elected in accordance with this "Rules for Election of Directors" (hereinafter,, the "Rules"). Except as otherwise expressly defined herein, all capitalization terms used herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Company's Articles of Association.

Article 2

Election of directors of this Company shall be held at the General Meeting. This Company shall prepare ballots and note the number of votes.

Article 3

In the election of directors of this Company, the names of voters may be represented by shareholders' numbers.

Article 4

Unless otherwise permitted under the Applicable Public Company Rules and the Articles of Association of the Company, there shall be at least three (3) Independent Directors, provided, however, that the total number of Independent Directors shall not be less than one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of the Directors.

Article 5

In the election of directors of this Company, the number of votes exercisable in respect of one Share shall be the same as the number of Directors to be elected, and the total number of votes exercisable per Share may be consolidated for election of one candidate or may be split for election of two or more candidates. The election of Independent Directors and non-Independent Directors shall be held in the same election; provided, however, that the respective votes shall be separately casted and calculated to determine the elected Independent Directors and non-Independent Directors.

Article 6

In the election of directors of this Company, the candidates to whom the ballots cast represent a prevailing number of votes shall be elected based on the result of the election as Independent Directors or non-Independent Directors, respectively in descending order. If two or more candidates receive an equal number of votes and the number of such candidates exceeds the specified seats available, such candidates shall draw lots to decide who should be elected. Where any such candidate is not present, the Chairman shall draw lots on behalf of such candidate.

Article 7

At the beginning of the election, the Chairman shall appoint several persons each to supervise the election and to count the ballots. The persons to supervise the election may be appointed from among the Member present.

Article 8

The ballot box used for voting shall be prepared by this Company and inspected in public by the person to supervise the election before voting.

Article 9

If the candidate is a Member, voters shall fill in the "candidate" column on the ballot the candidate's name and such candidate's member's number (if applicable), and the number of votes cast for such candidate. If the candidate is not a Member, voters shall fill in the "candidate" column on the ballot the candidate's name, the candidate's ID number, and the number of votes cast for such candidate.

Article 10

Ballots shall be null and void upon occurrence of any one of the following conditions:

- (1) Ballots which are not prepared by this Company;
- (2) Ballots which are blank or incomplete;
- (3) Where the candidate is a Member, the name or shareholder's number of such candidate filled in the ballot being inconsistent with the Register of Members; where the candidate is not a Member, the name or ID number of the candidate filled in the ballot being incorrect;
- (4) Ballots with other written characters or symbols in addition to candidate's name, member's number (if applicable) (or ID number) and the number of votes cast for the candidate:
- (5) Scribbled and unidentifiable writing or writing which has been altered;
- (6) Any of the candidate's name, member's number (if applicable) (or ID number) or the number of votes cast for such candidate being erased or changed; or
- (7) The name of the candidates filled in the ballots being the same as another candidate's name and the respective member's numbers (ID numbers) not being indicated to distinguish the.

Article 11

The ballots should be counted during the meeting right after the completion of vote casting and the results of the election should be announced by the Chairman at the meeting.

Article 12

These Rules and any revision thereof shall be approved by the Board of Directors and be further the approved by Ordinary Resolution at General Meeting. These Rules shall take effect upon the effective date of [Fifth] Amended and Restated Articles of Association.